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20ih June, 1¢063%

R, VALSR: Since about ¢ olclocl, il my information is
correct, the lady usher has been in Court and hos scarched
through cevervihing that was lelt in this building at 3 o'clock
o=t 31bht, or everything that was left in this room, and she
ras net been able to find the document foxr which we are looliing,

JUDCEE CCLES: It is a most extraoxdinrnary ithing. YHell,
all T nced to say is that the rhotostat copy had bDetter be
substituted as the erxhilit wnitil such time as the original
mey be found,

i, ALEH: It should be mariked 35a. I haeve been asked
to point out by the scolicitor for the Defence who aid the
particular photocopying that no-one shouvld be mystified by
the fact that, in ithe top right-lhand corner, some initials
cppear. L think it is PET or PH2Z, Vhat happened there is
theaet when he went awav to do some photocepying vesterday what
he photoconied was a pliotocony of tThe original on to which he
nad put ds inditials and so thie phoitocopy we have now bears
wie initials althcugh, cf course, the Court andg the Jury will

nG Th 2 original document does not hwave those

JUDCGE COLES: Then none of us can be misled by that.

YR, WALSH: They mean nothing of any relevance,

JUCo G COLIS: That must be that for the moment We must
nroceed 1o cross-examinatiocn of F.C. loore,

POLICD CCUSTABLE MOORE (COMTIIULD)

Cross-Zxamined by TS, BATRD

Z. I expect vou returned to your home in Liverpool last night? -
fie o, I live din Widnes.

4. We know from lir. Brophy that you and he are friends? - A. Ve

are colleagues at work.

2. Do vou say vou are friends or vou know each other through work? -
A. That is where T met him. '

'y

Ge Are you firiends or not? - A. Yes, you could say that,
L. Pleacse tell us a little briefly about the fravel and secating
arrangements that have been laid on for you witnesses in this
17

a T
case., Did you travel up here on Friday of last week at al
1‘1

A. Ke, I did net. .

C. Mr. Brephy did we know. Did you see him aficr he came baclt te
Liverpool during the weelend? - A, Yes, T think we were on duty
toheuhﬁr

Q. When was that? - A, Ve vwere on duty over the weeliend,

- -
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When? ~ A, Throughout the whole tour of duty - Eaturday, Sunxday

and ronday.

I {hiink he drives a Police car? ~ A, lle ds a rolice driver, vos,

Iis mate in thce car as a rule? - A, ko,

When did vouw come up here To be ready To zgive evidcence? -

S Tuesdarr,

Vhen voeu came up here did vou have a copy of your statement o

were vou given one or what? - A, No,

You did ot heve a copy wWhen vou arrived? -~ A, Mo,

Before vou came into the witness box yvesterday had you seen &

COoDY of vour statement at all since the day vou have told us

about when vou signed it7?7 - A, No,

You had not? = L. 0.

Cver the wegeliend wvhen yvou were on dusty 1t was at Garston Police

Station where vou were based? - 4. Yes.

And that is wihere Erophy is based? - A, Correct.

So vou are telling the Jury fthat since ¥ou signed vour statement
ome time ago, vou have not leoglied at 1t at all, Have vou

refreshed wvour memoery or anvihing before you came into the -

witness boex toe give evidence? - A, o,

Un Tuesday night, where did vyou stay? - 4. I weni ho

Did wyou see anyihing of MMz, SBrophy con Tuesday night? -~ A, Yes,

iwe travellcd home together,

That did vou t about? - A, lething in particular,

well, I am sure you are not telling us yvou vwere quiet all the

wvay to Liverpool? - A,

T,

Presumably wyou new
he had been called,.
Did you ask him how
Did he tell wyou Liow
2id he tell you how
2id he tell you any
Reallyw, Nr. lloore,
mention the

Journey ]'1ome? - b,

AT

wvou

More—-or-less,

I was quite tired,

Brophy gave evidence on Tuesdayv? - A, Yes,

he had been giving evidence? - A. I knew
it had gone? -~ A, No.

it had gone? - A. Ho.

far it had got? - A. o,

of the things he said? -A. No.

Are wveou telling that Jury he did not

wvhole purpose

Yes.

sure 1t was not on Tuesday

of him being here at all on ithe

night thiat he told you

-
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that vou had to say in Court that you signed a copy of his
statement in the van in the car park? - A, Quite certain.

You see, he had just given us that evidence before we leflt to
A,

o home on Tuesday night, Did he tell you that? - 4, No, I
was not aware oi that, no.

is not at all tiue, MNr. loore, is it, that you siguned his
ement it the van in the car park? - A, o, that is vhere

Tt is where vou signed 1t7 - A, Yes,

We can only give you a photocopy of it vut I would lilte vou
to lool at it please, Exhidit 38a. (Handed, Could vou also
have to hand IZ:Mibit 3¢9, Piecase look at e plhiotocony of
Mr. Brophy's and put yours cdovm on vop of the television
where we can zall see it a £ lr. Brophv's

* e

it
staternient? -~ 4. The 1¢th June, 1984,

Do vou want to change vour mind and Tell us when you signed

it, if wvou &id%? - A, 1 signed it at the time when it was handed
To me in the von.

“hat was the date on it then? - 4, ¥Well, I presume it was thai
date there,

Did wou mot loolk? - A, o,

You did :eit? You vold I, talsh vesterday in ths clearest
terms you read it through: twice? - 4L, Yes, I read the body of
tite statoment.

Yhere did you sign it? -~ A, Three times, at the Tow, bottom

fiow close is the first signature to the date? - &, About +V

You Lnew it ivvas not the 19t June the day this incident tool:
nlace, ¢id wvou not? - LA, Yes.

Well, exmnladn to this Jury how it is vyou can possibly have
signed it the dayv before it was written out? - 4. I just did
not notice The date that was on here vhen I signed it.

- A, 0T pa

s that » examplte of how thore
o} s T 3 i =t?

ughly vou read tho whole of
¢ cont ' T

] ntent

How thoroughly did vou read it there in the van twice? -
A I oread the body of the statement very thoroughly,.

Sid vou agree with the Lody of the statement? - A, Yes.

H
ng it countains only the truth. Is that the case there? -

TUsually, o statement of that lkind has a caption at the bottom
=
: o vou rneax thie piece at the top?




Does it not recad as follows, "This statemont consisting of

two pages each signed by me is tirue to the best of wmy knowledge
md beldiel and T wmelie it Imoving if it is tendered in evidenice
T shizll be liable to prosccutior if I have wilfully stated in
it anvthing which I know to he falsec or cdo not believe to be
true"? Ilow, your signaturc, il theat dis what it is, comes

quite clese to that paragraph as well? - A, Yes,

Did vou read that paragrapihr through tvice with care? - A, Ves,
Presumably, you digested its implication that yvou must not
azree with anything in thav stetement wihich was ncet true? -

L, Yes, I am avare ol thazt,

So yourn viev vwas that everything in the statement was true and
vou knew it was true? - 4L, Yes,

2id lir. Zrephv tell vou anvvithiing abeout hovw he came to make that

e 4id mot tell vou vhether he made it on his own or vhether
=0 had been another Folicoeman vwhc had seen whoit went on
€ i

- M . -3 . g T NP N . .- . N
wvheo helioed Rim or anvihing of that kind? - A, o, hie d

tipetiner and sec vhether you wea
is in it. Go to the sentence that begins

witihh what 4 e
The morning there had been & steady builld-up of
TThere were vou when vou saiw that? - A, I was in .

There were these piciiets building up? - A, Theyv were building
up in frent of the main line of Folice Cfficers from where I
couid see,

Jow long were vou in the car park? - A, As I say, T cannoi
cive an anproximation of the time I spent there.

vou have veur watch on? - &, Yo, I had it in my pocliet so
would not be broken,

Did vou mot lool: at it at any time? - A, Mo, I did not have
call to,

Vhet did the number of picliets build up to whilst vou vere
watching? - £, There was guite a large number there when we
got there, :

“Thot time did wou get there? - A, I have no idez,
How many is a "large number"? - A, Over a thousand.
Y hern vou got there? - A, Yes.

And it built up as you were watching? -« A, Yes,

"There were approzimately 3,000 pickets"., VWas there a time
when you saw a number you would estimate like that? - A, Yes,

b
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When you saw that figure in the shtement you thought, "That is
fair enough"? - A, Yes,

v, ..., Facing us as we blocked off Highfield Lane"? - A, Yes.

¥When were vou blocliing off Highfield Lane? - A, I talte that to
mean the Police. '

That does it say? - A, "Facing us",

"is we were blocliing off Highiield Lane”. hien were you and I,
Srophy blocliing off? -~ A. The only time we were there was when
woe were helhind the line of simelds.

-
L}

)

You told us you went up there and went thirough? - a4, We did not.
e went straight through,

How long were vou belHind there blocking it off? - A, It would bhe
a matter of 20 minutes to halif-an-hour,

You were stood behind the frornt line for 20 minutes to half-an-
hour? -~ 4. Aoproximately, yes,

You were witir I, Zrophy that morning, were vou? - A, Yes,

So that is what you meant when vou signed that - that 20 minutes
or half-an-hour wvhen vou were blocking off Highfield Lane behingd
the front cordon? - A, Yes,

You de¢ not know what time you went up that rcad, I suppose? -

* T
the 1O,

Your PS5U booitiet says 11,157 = A, I would accept that.

That would Ihmve been put in there by Inspector Bennett? - A. Yes,
T presume s0.

You and kMr. Brophy presumably were standing for 20 to 30 minutes
belhind ithe lines because veou werce together? - A. Yes,

A

Do you remaember chatting te him during that time? - A. Mo,
Were vou conscious of his presence? - 4, Yes.

Beecause I gather vou sticlk together when you can? - A, I was with
my unit so he would have been there,

1y sticlk together with lir. Brophv? - A, Not

articularly
1 do not socialise with hirm,

Do you not »na
1y,

narticular

On duty? Do you not work together when vou can? - 4, It is only
a small section so it camnot be avoided,

Give me a stralght answer. Do vou work with him particularly or
not? -~ A, lNot in particular, no.

Dut he was tlhere all the time wvou were behind the lines for 20
or 30 minutes? - A, Yes, '
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"There were nno shields be

Can you remember what he was carrying? - A. lo,

Vas he carrying anything as far as you could see? ~ A, Not as far

as I can remember.. I do not remember in particular what he was
carryving.

ATe you saying that means he was not carrying anything or he might
hove been carryving scmething and you did not notice? -~ A, I am
saying I camnot remember what he was carrying. '

You cannot remember what he was carrying or if he was carrying
something? - A. L cannot remember if he was carrying anything.

So he was not carrying a big noticeable article? -~ A, Woit that I
am aware of, no,.

So when you agreed in that statement that you were blocking off
Highfield Lane as this line of pickets got bigger, that is what
vou mean, about .30 minutes, is it? - A, Yes,

ing used at this point', That about that? -
A, There were not any being used then.. S

You had one, did you not? -~ A, ot at first, no,.

Ch, I see, I do wanit to get this completely clear, When you
went up behind the cordon and waited for half-an-hiour oxr 20
mninutes, you did not have a shield or you did? -~ A, No, I did not.

v

Srophy was witlh yvou then? - A, Yes.,

Tell, when vou said there were no shields being used then, did

vou mean none of your unit had a shield or did you mean you did
not see anv anywhere on the cordon? - A, None of my unit had a

shield.

You see, in your statement you say there were no shields being
used? -~ A, At that particular time, when I first got there,

there were no long shields being used on the front cordon.

There were eventually long shields used.

Having gone unp there, yvou are sure about that, I suppose ,.,.. 7 =

it ]
ine AS sure as I can be, ves,

Having got up there and waited 20 to 30 minutes behind the line,
is that when the line broke and let you go through? - A. Yes, it
would be,

So did vou and My, Drophy run through on perhaps what we have
comme to call the "first charge'? Did vou run through together? -
A, Well, mnot that I was aware of., We were in the same unit that
went throuzh. VWhether he went to one side or the other I cannot
say, I was just concentrating on where I was going.

Vhere wvere you going? - A, Towards the line of pickets,

“hat were the pickets doing? - A. Well, prior to that they were
throwing missiles. As we ran they just retreated.

G




Q. Why did they run awvay from you? - A, VWhy?

%e Yes? - A, I would imagine they did net want to be arrested,

2, Did vou have vour truicheocn drawvn? - A, TYes, I dii

3, Zut you did not have wvour shield with wvou? - A, I had my shield
then, yves,

. .

{. There did wvou get it from? - A, Ve took our shields to the Iront
line but did not actually have then,

nere did wvou put them whiile you we

-
- &, L3 the sdide ofl the roa

%y Lot us loolr at the picture ancg see where vou nput them.
vou leock at Dxdidibit OF (Handed) You have iddentified
ares around thai wall on photograph 1 is where the cor

i t behind it, It was the build-up of wall

~

vour recollection? - 4, Yes,

)

Aol wWas

e and wvou nave told me once yveou did not have
saying 130w when vou went up there vou had
I one un,
L. “Thrat did vou do witih At? -~ A, Ve Just laid them down By the side
of the iroead,
w. Con oyou tell us whiereabouns onr tiie road they were? -~ 4, 1 caennet

s
remenber viiere Ain particular,

L. That about wvall on the left? - 4, Yo, I Tiuink they were Jjust
on tlie sice.

L. O what side? - 4., Cn the lefit-hand side as vou looli.

7, Tors T i =T g I = ! Cr th ey oy s e R [ r -

We JUST G TRIE TILITATY O« i, n Thae pavenent or vile grass verge,

e JustT on the verge? -~ L. Yes.

. them were there staclkied up waiting for use 7 -~

idea,

2. Vas it Just vow or the whole FSU's shields stacked in a pile? -
e The unit I was with »ut tihie shields there., Once I went baci:
t{o The corien vhwwre eould ave been ciliers nut there,

Sy Wos there a general stechpile of shdelds there? - 4, Mvuiit oai
tiie sinielas therc,

{;, You thinit they did? - A, Yes,

Can vou remember whether they all had the same kind ¢ o1

P
-
C
"
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ones or what? - A, I am not sure whethar any-
a long one ovut there were two types of ghort

!

id some have lon
2 in my unit ha

o}
&
2

Ltnd the ong you have in your hand is the one you used? - A. Y

(X4

¢4
4l

So there were 23 shields piled up alcong here? - A, I would say s¢

And we must say that must be after 11.15 because that is when you
were described as being deployed? - A, If you say so.

Was ther anyithing else piled up? Helmsets? Did you take ycour
helmets off and siack them? - A, Ho.
You had & helimet on? - A. Yes,

JUDGZ COLES: So there were 23 shields, mixed typss of sho
shields, stacked at the side cof the rcad, elither on the pavament
o™ the grass verge? - A, Yes,

MR, WALSH: I think she may be cn tne wreng photograph.
The $Fficer, in facit, vesterday pointed where it was. It is
rhotegrenh 2, not photograph 1.,

MRS, ZAIRD: T know where he said 1t wzs tut I thought
photogresh 1 gave him the whole line and I think he and I have
bzen working from photograph 1.

JUDGEZ COLES His evidence yssierday was that that "Eend"
sizn was the line

MRS, BAIRD an you seg that "bend" sign on photegrapzph 17
A, Yes,

And you are saying considerably deown the road from the "Zend"
sign would by your shields? - A. lNo, Jjust where the '"Bend" sign
ig. That is where the initial line was.

S¢ you had them right behind the initial line? - A. Yes,

So vou stcod around for a while., What made you pick your
up? - A, An ordcer.

b
.

Wnat was the order? - A. "Pick your shields up!"

Who gave you that order? - A, Inspec:tor Benneit.

t was his next order? - A. I d¢o nct know his exact words butg
iinmg gpenec up and we went Through
Wihilst you had been waliting for this 20 minutes behing the line,
how far do you think you wereg from the front of the cordon? -
A, from the front ¢f the Police lineg?
Yes? - A. Just ktehind them.
! ime - five cor six, two or thres ....7 -

How deep was 1t at tha
A, I sheculd say ¢ ¢




I suppose it is pleLt3 obviecus Ffrom your evidence that no-one
that time was in mucli danger from missile-throwing? - A, Inditiall
ere were no large shields being uscd so the missiles that were
oming were hitting the line of C{ficers. They did not have

shiields thon,

e

O o2
:.3 o

e
>
T

S¢ missiles were coming and hEting that line oif Cificers? - A. Yes,

Vere any missiles cowming over? - A, Some were going right over ihie

TOoD.

You muzst have been in a bit of personal danger then? -~ AL Yes.

Did vou actually sce “picket Lriclks!" hitting Folicemen? - i, I
gsaw the missiles landing within the Folice line.

So do not know why they were Deing helped from the
S A. I cen only presume wWaen someone 1s carried Trom

Dut vou did not see any sign of injury on them, is that right? -

[}

How many were carried away? -~ a, L saw at least two,

Jiew were they belng carried? -~ A, They were being carried by
colleagues, ail arm and a leg each.

So wvou are saving feour or five Folice Cificers each carrving a
coelleague? - a. Yes,

A vou sav thiat twice? - Al at lecast twice.
Uld vou see &y sign o dnjury on those men being carried? -

uncenscious as far as voeou couwld see or avalie? -
S T ocould rneit roallyv see,

~ A, L did noi loolkx to see hov

Dut oas they possed you, were they on your »ishit? - A, Yes, on

JEY P
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the right, They were carried past me on the righs, There wore

Jra I3

had come fitom? - A, I remember at leas

<

Zo whern yvou confirm in that siatement that vou were cequinped wi
o A
5 !

- 4LHe Yes,.

ined about 4C vards, held ine and the

C 1
don oo Torward? - A, Yos,
h

Theat ds vhat you confirm? - A, Yes,

And that is what vou saw happen? -~ A, Yes,

first eof all, wve have got the picture you have Jjust painted
o leng shilelds being used, all these pecnle being injured,
are sent through, the cordon meves forvard To join you anc
ook ot Iy, Erophy's and your statement and, lo and bheheld,
col 1 ras suddenly got long Ve ran about 40
‘s then helc that line whilss Folice cowdon,

1A .

-

ne thev had not pinched them off v

ur stockpile, Where aic
<5 come TromT - 3,

. .
ng forward.

tho s i

T oo not Tnoy whiesre they came from,

There did tier come from? - 4. I do not inow,

llow long wer2 you svanding there at the Irount waiting for these

leng shields fTo come up so the cordon could move forward arcund
e

o
you? - A, L do not kinow. L cannot rem

Well, they have to come all the wav ud v
4 ten minutes? ~ 4. about t

o
ana protectjvo head gear and being held in reserve,
1 nt?

i

Then vou go on to confirm that the malin cordon opened uln and you
g

te jJoin us"? - L. Yes,.

Ten minutes your wnit was out there? - A, I can only approximate.

us veou were walting for long shields to be
un? - 4. I was too busy watching what was Teing thrown

D¢ vou thinit it might have been longer than ten minutes that vou

stoed there? - A. Tt could well have been.

ould it have Leen as long as

Sidh veuw leecll at vour watch at fthat time at all? - A, o, it was
i my nocket.

I wvant to be clear about this: do you sav
tlhie frent line for ten minutes? S A

Tefore theyv came up? - A, Yes,




a9, AsL ’-'TRD: S0 there really camnot e any gquestion of
this being the scquence: that you ran forward, drove them baclk
ana then :'meedlutelv the cordon came in front of you? ~ A, Ti
did not scem as immediate as that, no.

4. Tid you notice, as FPolice Cfficers came past you, "Loock, they
hove long shields now and they did not have before'? - A, T did

2
ot notice in particular, no.,

Q. Zew, T want to checli one thing. It certainly is not the case
thiat vour FSU went up with its shields and its riot helmets and
its truncheens Grawn from the car park, ran 200 vards up to the
cordorn, the cordoen immediately bLrolke and you went tihrou That
Lz ot i zened? - L, llo,

L. So all statement were right as for

3. imd, iuvdeed, thwey vvere things vou had experienced yourself? -

to

Yo _h_';c., ¢ovour

[N . R P R
none e CL_L;_;_LCLlu"

S
-~
G
the first charge., You were stuclk out there ten
tiie teng shields came round vou., what 4did veu do
sitields came round you’? Just tihe
4. Ve lmeiwr from vour evidence vesterday
~ - . amy — — ] " -~ — a~
charge. Icvw long elapscd bolere that

~ ~

w. Could that e as loxg as hali-aon-hour,
<

L vou doing during that space of time? - 4. Lothing, just
waiting,
Lo Did vou put wvour shields doin again, for instance? - 4, e just
leanced thom deownn ©r our sides,
. comsciovs of i, Sronlnv o thentT - Lo, 1 was owoare e wios

L. ore vou convwersing vitih hiim durin

3
e i .- - - L e ta -, - " * T-- - -~ Ty -
e i0ownsg Jdust Tthiere ana vow kKner he was there
- -5, R T R, g e [ SO, P . . T O T T . .
“e D30 anvihing of dmportance hwappen during thzot bhreali? - AL Mo,

mnove a

in, were you again ordercd 3y Inspoector
your sh 1

;
ields upt - A, Tes, il yeu did not alwroudy

-] e
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did you catch sight of that {ront line of piclecits-bhelore
vou started to xun or after you started to 1mum? - A, As soon as
it opened up I could see the Tront linc of niclets because it
was on o sligzht gradient so they were on a hisher level fhan us,

- =5

o
-
[
o]
O
o

G, Could vyou sce alhcad of wvou or to the left aond right? - 4, T
could see the vhole wview in Tront.

“. oW, at wnot stage did yvou caitch sight of ir. ioreland, that
s-my real guestion? Vhere vere vou? -~ A4, As soon as the line
opened, that is when I caught sight of him,
L

S fiirst moment I saw him
something off the floor. I do not

S, So ds it the same hand and
throwing he threw wiztli,

- £y T — ol —~ - g — £

T TeMemer TNot. Is 4iv ©

wiere he 18 piciiing un a store wi
LA

. LF it vas a stene, ves,

G

G. S0 if it was half-an-hour, during the substantial periocd vou had
been behind the TFolice line, vou could not see through,., TYou
could only see as the FPolice line opened and let wyou have a good
view? - A, Yes, from vhere I was standing.

G. and, of course, Brophy was beside you? - A, T thinlt he is =z little
taller ...

G JUDGE COLZDS: Could ou not see the pickets From vhere vou
were? - A, o, net the front line., I could see the pickets but
not the front line, I could sce the piclkets because they were

on a higher level anc they went so far bacl.
G MRS, DAIND: AS vou saw 1. Meoereland pick the stone up
3 : ithi the same hand, he did net already have his
tones, did he, or did he? - 4., I saw him bhend
cmetiting up off the floor, I +

they were stones ....

G. dnd vou saw him Tiwrow it almost in the same movement, whatever

G. Conr you ansver my guestion? It does not scem likely he already
had a handful of stones, does 1t? - A, I do not Lknow,.

w15




Did he drop them as he threw this one? - A. Ko, he could have had
ctones in his other hand. I do not know,
Zut if he haoad stones in his other hand, he nonetheless bent dovn
and picked one up? - A, Yes,
“hereabouts did the stones e threw land? - A, They went over my
head, I did not see vhe they went., Cnce it went out of my line
of vision I did not see where it went,
Did it go directly over your head? - A, Mot particularly, no,
Tell us, as accurately as you can, where it went in relation to
ourself? - A, YVhen I gaw him he was slightly to my left and when
e threw it it would have beenn slightly to my left but over the
TOD,
To Zronhv!s right? - AL IT would e to his left. e was to my
laft as well.
So veu thinlt it went further To vour left than Srophy was? -
Se Yos,

when vou saw Thwls., a3 the line ownened vou ran

as the line oprensd I saw him do that,

Dui vou were not stationary at any time after the line opened? -
L. Vell, vou do not talke a2 run at it You stand waiting and,
as the line vpens ul, ¥ou are steood still and for a second yeou
2 oseco,

) ned up and you stana for

i start. You do noet Tuanup
at suprose you weuld becausoe
to

Tow long did vou stand and locli? ~ AL Cnly =2
fnc tihiat is when vou saw this thiat you have

did vou see lir, Moreland do? - A, As we got

nalf-turned and stumbled bacliwards,

baclwards where

find after that, becazuse he had stunbled, he
very auiclily and Drophy grabbed him? - 4, Ye
fnd vouw told us veu Then helped Talke him bac
You have described novw everyvihing veu saw in
i, lMoreland? - 4, Yes,

Ty did yeu sign a statement, if you did,
Sccused, MHorecland, nick uz several missiles
tovards us'? Le That is what T saw hidm do.
T am sure that is not vhaot you just told us
vou told us abou one missile? - A, I though
one., '

that said,

cconds?
. LT

you are
be ruming

matter of seconds.

described. What else
closer he sort of

he stood? - A, Yes,

cdid not get away

5.

Iz through the lincs,
connection witih

"T saw the

and tihwxrow them
you saw him do,
1t T sadd more than



e

¥

L2

(S

MR, WALSH: If it helps my learned friend, my note is,
UFrom where I was siood behind the line I could not sce the
Tfront Iine of the piclets but T could see loreland bend down
and piclt something up off the ;1001 What e Dpiclked up may

have been stencs, He threw ot once!

JUDGD CCLIS: Iy note is, "He piclied up and threw in
ctmost the same movement, He could have hiad stones in his other
hénd., Y do not kmow,. hatever he threw went behind me® I
thinl: 4t is right tTo say from the evidence he has just given
he only referred to one throwing. You had better enguire, lirs,
Todrd,

1RS, I have giwven you an onnortunity to tell us
vihwat you saw lir, Moreland do and 1 am aquite satisfied you have
only described him nicking . up one thing and throirting it but
heve is your chaonce if you wishi? - A, I said more thoan one,.

i, LL3ITer vould your Honmcur lilie fto now what he said
in chief?

- of comment and I shall

(o253 P

@5 Just salc now t

So you saw him plck up with the one hand and throyw it in
same movement, You think he mighv have picited up more <t

ore stone? - A, Ie could well have done,

5.
3
H
c

sanlig he appeered to picli up more tham one object,

L

JUZGD CCL=E, Lre vou saving e bent down once and
v mere thiasr one stone or he bent aoxn more than once? -

"o vou sura he 4id or not? TVhat is the position? - A, I

in chief and whai

e You went on to say he might have picled up
iles in the one stoop and thrown them at once? -
o

e bhent dowr once @and apheared to pick up more thon one object,
I ¢o not know whether it was a stone or stones cr whatever i

WS
But vou are sure he only benit doimn once? -~ A, Thav I saw,

IS . DLl Llso, veou hoave only described the one

Tt

TCS.

© e
srojecitile over your head to ;rophy's lelt? - i, The one that

I followed, ves,
~

o,
wont in all cdivections or whnat? — AL NO,

e vou thilt he might have thwown more than one at once?
nonpened te thwe ones you have not described seeing going
the air? - . I do not know. ’

“ere you not looliin

z sort of emnplosion of missiles from his hands that
7




£

L

P

JUDGE CCLE3E: You said vou only sy him bend dovmnm once,
rou sec liim tharow more than once? -~ AL, o, I c&id not sce

135 ama throw nore than once,

T want te modie sure I oam geobirg roper note of what vyou said,
I nmoted as coming from you Just a few moments ago;
1

e

OO

have »iclkked up more than one object but he only
T and I only saw one action of throwing", is thot
right or not? -~ L. That is corrcct,

YVould wou now tell me how he fell, flat on
- A. He Teil bvacliwards,

Tid¢ he go snread-ecagled fiat on his back or vwhat? -~ 4. He, he
sort of healf-turned and fell Ppaciiwairds putti-g nis arms bacl:,
He did not end up flat on his baclk, :

3

t the mevements towvards the ground were backwards? - A, Bacikwa:s
ood te one side,

So 47 he banged anvihidng onn the grow:d it is likely to have been
tihie bacl ol something? - 4, Yes.

You did not sce anvone hit hin between the shoulder blades wiih:
& ript shield, did wou? - &£, o, not a2t theat tlmo.

Vell, vhen did you see it? -~ A, No, I did not.

Jid wvou ever I him between the shoulder blades with a xiot
11eld? =~ L. 0.

is because vou were not I

<+

& vou sce Inspector Bemneitt kit him beiween the shoulder
- ,
a

~cdes with a riot shield? - /. Te.

Did veu see ony other Liverpool Imspector hit him between th
shouvlder Dipdes with o riot shield? - A, llo.

Secouse that is vhat linoclied him dotvn, is it not? - A, ot that
I could see.

“hot de vou thind: caused him to fall? - 4, He hali-turned and
Ssturmmbhled bacinards,

a

Just his ownr silly clumsiness? - A. Yes, I presume so.

5 no questjon of him starting to run awvay, l.e.,
from you? - A. XNo, because by ihe time
fallen,

i

Se he, wnfortunate fellow, did nov make any progress awvay from

16




you at all? - A. o,

iy have you siPned a statement that says

distance from loreland he tuined and Legon to run
a few yards Moreland stumbled and fell"? - A,

his left and then stumbled,

“hen I aslkied vou whether he made anwy
said "wo". I am ashing why vou have
this: " hen I was a short dlstance from
began to run awvay, Sfter a few
L. In stumbling he was going to move baclk
so he did not fall down esactly

away
where he was stood

D¢ vou want to say anything else about that? - A,

Lre you sure? - Tes,

Vou would not lilte to elaborate at all? -~ A, e,

malle &

follow

o

10T

2o vou

sure I what you mean,.

1T

sfter

[ C.'V" ng

tatement, "He

says 11 ¥
a few =
nosw is
fe Tﬁau is w
ne stumbled and

5 turned and began to
s he sthDled ang fell",

at he, in falling over,

I meant it to come over as.
hil

Svay from Yes, so

vour distances.
to fall a few

you inow

Tell, :
us how he monaged

|-—a i—'

vards? -

How did he manage to fa

did you? - A, Yes, L

statenent
you mean,

that
what

u get the contents of
am not sure I follow
It is
to look? -~

statement now,
Do you went

Look
Srophvls,

at yvour own
is it not?

JUDGE CCLZES: is the transposition of

There
not?

o - Ty L
33 . .D-:'_L.'\_D-

—a

Certainly,

You are welcome to look at ilr. Brophy's again but
will fake i< from me they are word-perfect except
choanged over, Your sitatement

statement tollis about you? - A. Yes.

U

Yow did they come to be word-perfect, do you think
1ot Iinow.
Tho made the statement about this first, you or Br

-17=

PrOFTress away
signed 2 statement

[OAY;

"When I was a short
Ay,
lic hali-turned to

After

from wvou vou

N

0.

fevr Ta*ds Drogress in falling over? -

3y

11

Lin

You are a Folice Officer.
A, In falling

&

dia,

~ ~
130omy

word-perfect tThe
A, I think

names,

saving

Horeland he turned and
vards loreland stumbled ond fell'?
from where I

was

A, I am

WAy,

I thinl: wvhat you are
moved away from you? -
As he half-turned

that put him not at the point he was.,

Tell
over,

few vards? -

Tell the

same as
S0, VeS.

is there

perhaps you

the names are

tallis about Brophy and

Br

- A

ophy's
. I do

Well,

- A,




=

left Censtoble Rrophy withh the prisoncr in the e¢harge office,

o]
iy

~ ,
7

You have sizned that one as well, have vou not? - 4. Yes,

. . . 1
You signoed € =4

— ~ » -
J b
&= -

©rom the date as well? ~ A, Yes,

TTow did you melke the same wistelie Twice on tweo different bilits of
nazer? - 4, L do not linow,
e else sismed that statement of yours? - A, liv section Sergeant.

(o

Sow

o~

=l

yvou been

Police

main?

vears,

In the four vears, when you signed a statement, have wvou
usually dated the statement the date you signed 4{? - 4. Usually,
ves,
that date,
nech o,
not, the day the
and thot is the

- ~ . N . .
1850 ~— s - COJ_«\’ NOH .
: 1A ' T~

PR R W SO - g 138,

~17..
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Avsolutely sure? - A, Yes.

Hew have ycu signed 1t when it says the 18th June? -« A, I do nox

You just do not know? Dicd yocu get that statement as it is -
tvoed up? - A, Yes.

wnen you got it you cannot really tell us, but it was a con-
siderable time since ycu had seen Brophy's statement, was it not”
A. Yes, 1t would have been.

Egzcause, according to you, you saw Brophy's statement in the van
o thne 18th June and net sinceg? - A. Yeés.

“ow Gid vou Know whether that statement was right or noi? - A, I

it cver and signed 1t,.

Angd by reading that over, whenever 1t was, Chrisimas Day 1984,
vow rememnered it was right, did you? - A. Yes.

=2 you gulite sure that you dicd not get that statement given c
veu on the 18th June and signed it whilst Sergeant Armsirong was
¢ osite with the rest ¢of the PEU?Y - A, Mot this one,

‘nich gtatszment did vou sign then, Just the Zrophy cona? - A, Yes.
Lrs you gulite sure about that? - A, Yes, I did, This was no:t han
To e at the time. -
You see, There are other Oificers' statements in this case which
gre dated the 18th June which are typed sc¢ there is no problen
gzout it., Somabedy was cbviocusly tyoing statements out that day
Ts that neot what happensd to yours? - A, I was just handed ithis,
I read it and signed 1t, bui it was not on that date.

(Short Adjournment)

¥r, Moore, to clear the matter about your statement, it is typed

and you say that, even though it is dated the 18th June, it came

To you at some unspecified date later and you signed it? - A, VYes
At Liverpool? - A. Yes.

In the presence of Sergeant Armstrong? - 4., Yes.

Anc he countersigned 31t? - A. Yes.

Pid H¥Mr. Brcphy see 1t? - A, ot while I was present.

[}

Sorfar as you knew, has Mr, Brophy ever seen your statement? -
A, Kot as far as I am gware.

Can I ask ycu about az small piece of evidence which puzeled me
yesterday? You said that after leaving Mr. Moreland and !ir.
3rcphy at the Police Headqguarters, you weni back to your unit
and you were not in action again? - A, I cannct recall being
in action. '




-~

Sy

So where did you rediscover your urit alter vou lelt Iir. Srophy
and Hr, horeland? - A, I went back to bLehindg where the long
shield line was and some of my P3U was there. I just re-joined
tiicm,

Was Inspectoxr Bemmett there? Did vyou report to him? - A, No,

et about eitlhwer of tThe two Sergeants? -~ 4, Mo, T did nox
report to them.

431
o}

you just went and staved with your colleagues? - A. Yes,

iy

e vou remember vhich of the F5U were lefti there? - 4., XNo.

17 T sev a few names weould that help vyou at =211
gss alil the names were there,

i, Scotland, for instance, ilas he there? - 4, Not vhen T
rmed. < cannot remember liin being there

@t abeouwt i, Jomes? -~ A, T camnot recall.

Fal Lt ol - ——— s
Trom a different -ET

rom Livermccl tie re? - A, Not

Are you saying your whole unit was not in action again? - A, o,
I do not reccllect going through the line again.

did wvou do, Jjust stamnd about? - A, I would nect class it

anding abcout’. I was behind the main line in readiness if

Sut you wers never needed? - 4. I was not, no,

(D

e You were
ine move”? -

Did the main line stay there fox the rest of the
3 & you were stood dowin or the main 1d
i-e Whilst T was there theyv stayed static,.

an-heour but not a great long time.

Lnd then yvou were stood dovn and went baclk to the van? - A. Yes.

You have had some difficulties locating where lir, lloreland wvas
arrestea. Can you tell us whether you ever got to thie bridge
or not? - A, No, T cannot remermver, I can remember it was
crowded but I camnot remember the bridge in particular.

!

‘e are locizing at photograph Z. 7You think the cordon was first
the "Bend!" sign. You went through a few vards, :Lt folloved
vou aid you vent through again. It looks as though you were
o1

n

g towards the bridge? - 4. Yes,

Ly}
fal
]

Do wvou think you might have? - 4, I do not kuow, That is what

I remember, the line having started

I accept that, and it then moves up about 50 yards which puts

it somewhere near the farthest lampposton the left on rhetograph

—-20=

How leng do vou think vou were there? - A, It would bhe over half-



37 - A. Frobably a bit further, vyes.

T

Look at photograph L. You see, if you are standing anywhere in

that road, it is very difficult fo miss that railvay bridge in
Tront of vou., You must have seen it? -~ A, I cannot recall

it, no,.

So can vou not help us even with whereabouts lir,
relation to the railway bridge when vou saw him

Are you saying it is quite likely you never got
bridge? - A, It is guite possible. I camnot be

Do vou not think you would have been there?7 IT
lines underneatlh and it is quite distinctive? -
remember it.

You and Mr, Drophy put your hands on lioreland at
did you mnot, or perhaps Brophy an instant before wvou? - A,

simultaneouslil.

coX hold o accusedt!s left arm.

<

With vour right arm or ledt arm? - A, With my ri

- )
>
H

Whai about DBrovhy
lioreland's right arm.

t

.

3
1
k)

seeil

soreland was i
wowing? -~ A,

as far as the
sure,

has got
A-

o,

the same time,

- ihae 0T HIIOW 4 4 8 » [ P
I do ot lknoy he tool

So which hand did vou have on Loreland and whereabouts?
& <

Yas that by the wrist, putting his arm up his bacl, or

e L do not Linow.

L

Sut clear emough he
A, Yes,

Fow, lioreland had stumbled over, Did you help him up? -

was in the process of getting up anywawv.

SO 4eve = A. fe did not just get up,.

There was a certain amount of assistance from vo

L. Yes,

u

Did either of vou get him by the baclkk of the neck

’

to his feet? - A, Yot that I can remember, no.

A

P N

Almo
- A, T
.
L e
hold of Iir.
'..?.‘_? —

tooli the right arm and you took the left? -

He

and Brophy? -

and yank nhim

Yhen vou were in the region of that bLridge, did you see anvone

famous? - A, I did not, mno.

-

I have a little photograph of who I mean. It is photograph ¢,
Zxhibit 30, Can you look at that? (Handed) Do vou recognise
A. Ye

a figure on the floor being helped te his feet?

Tho is it? - A, Ir. Scargill.

ho is the Cfficer holding Mr., Scargill'ts right ar

idea.

2] -

r;\') -
iid

S.

ng

n
No.

3V
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Do you not know him?
Do vou know him? - A, No,.

thoe is the man at the front of the picture? - A, Inspector Bennett,.

We thinlk he is from Liverpéol, you see.,

Does that photograph help you to remember anything at all about

the anvst of lr. Moreland,

Lid you ever see that scene there - Policemen,

rlacing it? -~ A. No,

two of them,

helning Mr. Scargill to his feet? - A, No, I d&id not.

Do vou remember seeing that grass banking with some fencing

behing 1t7 -~ A,

You see, that is over the bridge.

¥ot particularly,

no,

would have to talte your word foxr it.

It means nothing to you at all? - A,

-

A, I cannotv remember,

“hen he fell over,
remeniber.

Se yvou do not remember any of those
when you arrested him? -~ A,

Well, can I Just tell you this,
sespel, but I understand
Frosecution, that a

Folicemen helping Scargill

fall at about 11.557 - A, IFf
That is just to give you ax
abeut 11.353 if this Officer

thind: you were

Vhere do you 3
o idea,

11,1532 -~ 4,

did e fall onzo

there will
11 Officer called

NO.

ana

vou say

idea that
is right?

at 11.353,

You do not

Zrass oxr

it is not to be talken
be some eviderice from
Adustin is one of the
to his feet and he sees Scargill
s0.

remember? - A, T

g
N0 e

IHght it have been in that region where yvou arrested Mr, Moreland? -
That means nothing to me.

A, I cammot

net? -

little trees being around

as

the

photograph must be taken
Yes.

A
b A

takiing it you were denploved

Twenty minutes after you were sent to the back of the cordon.
Vhere do you thinlkt you would be? - A,

assuming
at you were

verv beginrning when we
Let me tell you what it
nothing to do with maliing
hras vritten is, "11.15,
charges, stone-~throwing,

PRleity
i s
at the front of the works",
about in the car parlt? - A

2hg

Inspector Bemmett made a right
sent to the bacl:
first

of the

the entry that precedes that in your book savs,

Can wvou say that again?

note in wvour P3SU

cordon? -~ A, This is at

got tThere?

sayvs -~ and I accept that vou have

tiids uvup - but what vour Inspector

using shorit shields.
demonsirators"? -

Involved in
Yes,

A
Fiog

"Deployed

That is wvhen veu weould be standing
I imagine so.

Because nobody would describe for one minute the coxrdon in the
position where it was when you Jjoin it is in front of the
vorks? - A, I would not imagine so.

el




Q.

So what he seems to be talking about when he puts 11.1%5 down is
when you went to the back of the cordon? - A, The very first
time, ves.

You went there for the first time at 11,157 - A. If you say so.

Where do you think you were at 20 minutes later when this photo-
graph is taken? - A, By then, probably broke through the line.

Because I really doc want to be clear sbout this. There is a
period of 20 to 30 minutes when you are stancing there with
your shield in a pile with the others? - A. Yes, there was 2
period of time.

Do you think that 20 minutes after you were seént up te the cordo
you were standing there with your shield in a pile or do you
think you would have gone through the line? - A, IT could be one
or the other, I do not kKnow.

ehind or else you

q i A -— v
5 1% not - A, It scun:

sounds as 1f ycu
T

= ar
in the course of 2

th D
oM

ur =
ct F
I

[ i

have talked about 20 te 30 minutes standing behindg,
is in a pile, then z chage and then ten minutes
here whilst the long shields came round you? - A, Yes,

ot .

So it sounds as if, between us, we have covered this morning zll
the Ttime LDeitween your deployment and 20 minutes afferwards? -
2 t would seem S0,

Coulc I ask you to look at photograpn € in the Wakefiesld bundle?
Yanded) Could vou also look at photograpnh ¢ and look at them
together? Can you see in photograph % a man, who is not =
Policeman, btending over Mr. Scargill? - A, Yes,

) I—'

The fattish chap with a blue shirt? - A. Yes,.
In phtograph 8 he is being chased by a Policeman? - A, Yes,

Lock at something below the Pcliceman and that man on the floor?
A, Yes.

You can see there is perhaps a person lying there, can you not? -
A, Yes,

You can see the left leg of the fat man in the blue shirt which
is across the view of the person on the floor. You can see his
right leg is forward, his left leg is & litfle bit back, above
the blue that is his leg, I suggest there is Mr. Scargill's pnale
shirt? - A. I could not tell from that.

And I think what 1is happening there is that Mr. Scargill has his
right leg up in front of his face because you can ses a dark blue
shirt in front cof the pale blue shirt? - A. I could not see from
tha photograph. :

I am suggesting it is quite- likely that Mr. Scargill is on the
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floor behind the Cfficer chasing the fat man on photoygraph &7 -~
L. T would not say so leooking at that photograph.

2. Tou would say net? - A, I could not identifv anyone.

%. The point I am malking is that it looks as if photograph & is talen
only a few seconds kefore photograph 97 - L, It is hard Lo tell,

L. There certeinly has, betwveen the two phoiograzhs, been time to
clear away the people at the frent of photogranh &, Can you not
find any peowle at the front? - 4, Do you mean the Folice COfficer
there?

“w. Cn photograph: & there is a man with
o

T, Zending dowin surrounded LY Folicemen with riot shields? - A, Yes,

. Liverpool Felicemen with riot shields? -~ A, I would not know from
that photozraph

L. wnat about the chan a2t the front with his truncheon there? Can
veoeu sce the Cifdicer I meant - i, The one on the right?

e Yas, Iy gase is that that is you. Do you think that might be
veou or mnot? - A, MNoi from that photograpi, no,

L. You cannoit tell? - A, I could not recognlse anyone on there, noc.

L. So yeou do nev know whether that is vou or not? - A. Xo.

S. You see, if wvou loolk at the {twe photographs together again -

Inspecter ZBermmnett is at the front on photograph 9 but it certainly
is mnot Inspector Bemmett the figure I have pointed to on photo-
raph 8, is it? - A, It would not appear so, no,

1

%+ Because he has got a different shield fto start with? - A. Yes.

{n

e 4nd he does net really loolk the same. He is a shorter man on
Otocraph 8% - A. It has got a different shape and a different

rround to iz.

Di
su

"

. Bemmett is this man here on photograph 67 - Yes,

.

3,
1
»

Ze and the man I say might ke you on photograph 8 at the front has
got the kind you were carrv1nﬁ? - A, Yes,

S JTJ'M CILIS: With the black surrownd? - A, Yes,

3. IMS., BATRD: ¥ow, lock at photograph &. You have looked at
a group of people, one of whom has a blue shirt standing over
Lir, Scargill. Look at the zroup next te that group. Can vou

sce a Police Officer thewre with a2 shield that lecolks like
SJermett!s diield? - L. Yes

.

%. DBending over a mam in a denim suit? - A, Yes,

G. With ginger hair and a beard? - 4. I could not really tell, I




could not tell il is ginger-or brown,.

That man is holding his head? - L, Ee has his arm raised towvairds

his head, ves,

Did you see that scene? - A. I caimot recall it, no.

ZTeecause what I want to suggest to you it shows dis, first of &11,
knelt on the brouna holding his head, is lar. lMoreland, the man
vou arrested? - A, .1 could rnot tell from that photograprh.

Vou can loolr ai him now, Sta
stood un) ile has s
Zo you racopgmnise him at all? - 4, Yos,

is Yr, Moreland, ds iv not, omn the phoitograph? - 4,
oW,

thinlt is the man sianding over ir, Moreland?
vou? - 4, Well, I hiave not :

No 13 stancing over thie ginger or brown-hiore: in T
gyranhT - A, T o have not got m oclug.

Is it vyou? - L. Well, not with that type of shiesld, e,
Vhat ranlt are vou? - 4, Constable,

o photogranh? -~ A

Look at the Cfficer's Duttons on his chest. &N Vou see
wihie blurring of that geoes. Fe is moving dowvuavards so th

are olu*red in a downward direction. Can vou see that?
may mean the camera is moving downwaras

Jut the movement in the picture is downwards so the Liur
wards? - A. Yes.,

low look at I:is shoulder where nis badge of ranlk is. Remember
Ly

said that is ilr, rore

the way
e buttons
— _':‘.. . I ko

is dovwn-

which way the phrwtograph is blurred, He is an Inspector? - 4, I
ceuld 2ot sav from tThat photograni.
VR. OVALSIH: If it helps the witness and Jury I have got a
tagnifving glass and I am handing it over. (Banded to witness )
MRS, BAIRD: Do you thirk that is an Inspector? - A, I
could not say from the photograph.

t Exhdbit 40, the single black-and-vhite
cranrh? It iz a close-upn of lr. loreland and a Police COF
(Zarmoo) There is Ir. lMoreland and a Policeman in front

Vho is the Foliceman? - A, It is me.
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Just loeclk at the number and the spot on your shoulder there and
look back on the photograph and the man bending over lioreland in
photograph 8. See if that helps you to decide whether he is an
Inspector or not? - A, Guite possibly.

Wow look at phetograph 9, That is Inspector LBennett, You can
see his pips on his shoulders? - A, Yes,

Do vou think you are on photogranh 8 at 21l%? ~ 4, I could not say
from that,

JUDGE CCGLES: Do vou say that is Inspector Bennett behind
in photogranh L0? ~ i, XNo. '

RS, BAIRLD: I am sorry, I jumped baclk to photograph 2 to
sihiow the pips on Inspector Benneitt's shoulders.

YTou cannot say whether vou are on photograph 87 - A, Not from
that photograph, no.

JUDGzE COLIZS: Before wvou go any further T have a nofe from
the Jury and I think counsel ought to see it. (Nocte shown to
Y
counsel)
R, WALSH: Cbhviously none of us lInow the answver.
JUDGE CGLES: It is a guestion thatf obviously interests a

member of the Jury.

RS, BATIRD: It is clear ou photograph ¢.
JTDGE CCLES: The message simply reads, "Do Inspectors
vear brown gloves?" The ansgwer is, we do not know vet but it

may be that now vou have raised the matter it may be asked.

MRS, DAIRD: Look at photograph 9 and Inspector Bemnnett's

-

rignt hand. ¥Yhat colour is his glove? - 4. Browun.

how lecek at photograph 8 and the hand hehind Loreland's head,
Has that got a brown glove on, do you think? - A. It would appear,
it has, wves,

I say that is a phoitograph of I, loreland being arrested. Vhat
do wveou sav? - 4, L camnot tell from that photogranh.

I thought yvou arrested him? ~ A, I have not said that is Mr.
ioreland on that photograph., I cammot identify him on that
whotograzi.

The evidence will e that that photograrh is talien on the 18th
June, shortly before 11,35, Let me put it to you quite plainliy:
that is a photograph of lMr. loreiand being arrested and vyou are
not arresting him? - A, I carmmnot identify ....

Vell, if that is a photograph of Mr. lioreland being arrested, you
are not arresting him? - A, IT that is.

An Inspector with a brown glove on is arresting him? - A, Yes.
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Did that Inspector get Liold of him by the scruflf of the neck,
wallk him over the grass verge on the road and hand hiim over to
vou? - A, Ilo,

snd sayv, "Talie this one”? - A, o,

is how you first come into contact with lir. MNoreland,

i T
cme other Cificer huznded him to vou? - A, Lo, that

ave happened 1s that Inspecior
olt v, loreland by tiic bacl: of

to
verge in photogranly &, depnosited t
R wallied up the road agelic in phoitograph ¢,
‘ ' en? - A, 1o, I did now.
2id vou see any Liverzcel hit Mr, tioreland with a
shield and ithen zetv old of scruff of the neck like
t photc

et Sive vou 2 c¥c] =
. - - - T [P bt - =T an - -~ 1 R A A
ne arrestes at 17.23. now, where were vou at 17.307 - 4, At
17,30 where was I

OT OI. iV nA”

I asked vou where you thought
e

v
o]
4
=
o]
H
41}
o
ot
-—t
p—
[ERRS
HoAn
o)
o
o
3 A
(o]

You are very vague abecut all Thxds? - L, Unfortunately, I had rmy
voatch it oy owoclket., I o never rererred te 1t ciice,

when e handed ham
hit anyvone"? - A, Sorrv%

Ze wyeou sov lierelonc spolie to vou? - A, He spoke, yes.

. -l S - o . Hrde e P FR o [ R EAE RS
AN ho soid vvhati - Al Gliay, oloy, take it easy., 4AoCid new nat
T 1r
IV ONC T,

e did net say that at 211, did he? -~ 4. T heord him say it,




L

G

ticeably, no.

Was there anvithing noticeable obout his
f his oc”vu, when vou got held of him that v
NG,

Do owou thinl vou would have motviced if his mouthh was
when vou got held of b X o

at that
2, “'"OL]

is blilcod, in fact, on his top lip
from that phetogranh, no,
had & cut face at any time, is

Setween his arrest and you leaving DBrophy ,... vou lefs:
witih Zoreland in the detentiocn cenire, did veou? -~ A, Ju
was being taiion,

And vou did not leave loreland's company between thoese
Deints - between the arrest and that picifure? - L, Ho,

I he has got @ cut face on that piciure, can vou vell
anvihing that happened between arrest and that picture

(=]
might hove caused a cut lip? - A, ¥o, there was nothing

tie dic not get a fist in his face as he went threvsh th
coracn from a Foliceman? - A, ot that I can remember.

It might have «...7 - 4. Wo, 3 certainly did not notice
iGghtt it have nappened? - 4. I did noct notice.

Vere people getiing fists in their faces from Policemen
lxd

wvere going through the corden? - A, lMyvsell and Constabl
vere on either side and we Jjust took him through the 1i

Wheon vou got hold of lir, lorelond, was he a bit stunned? -
.J

Tid e not quize lnow where he was? - A, ot that I noeticed

Bropihy

st a

two

us
that

-

e

+

R
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Dut nobody fist him in the face? - 4, I did not sec anybody.

Did veu see any prisoner hit in the face as he went through the
1 ? A, T did not see. Cnce I had talken my prisoner I do nct

Know what was happening behind me,

Veuld vou lochh at Exhibit 21, photograph 3, particularly the
cxpressions on vour colleagucs! fuces? - A, Yes,

Locl; at the Cfficers to the right. Do vou remember that scene?
Those Officers looking at your approaching group in that wayv?

fre L G0 not remember those faces in particular.

Do vou remener eunressions ol that kind? - A, Ko,

- A, They all look a bit exp:

You de not thirl they lcoo
going to wunch Horeland as scon as lie goes n

Zo wveu want to looll again at Zxhibit 20 - the ¢l
- -

oo

and My, MHoreiand? He will say, on that photograpii, you have got
nis azym up his baclt and his wrist twisted. Have wvyou? - 4., No.

Loolk at the expressicn on vour face on that photograph. VWhat

do vou describe it as? - A, I do not know what vou mean by that.

You do notv thirk it expresses anvthing? - A, Kot particularly,
Were vou inflicting pain on lir. lioreland? - 4, No,

¥z he looks as i1if he is in pain on that photogranh?

[N
-
o
o]
I\_J-
)
l.l
—
=

malcing him look slightiv as if
the slightest idea, no,

.

You can see closelyv encugh on that photograph that he has not
zot & cut face on it? - 4, It would not appear s0.

There is yet anoithier photograrh of vyou and Mr, MMoreland which is
Zrhibit 40a. Can yvou see the two Officers this time and lioreland?
4w .'.1—@ S .

Con vou see wh2re You are on that photograph? - A, Yes,

You appear to be coming off the bridge? - A, It could well be,
ves, '

Well, now would vou describe those expressicy
ressi
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e
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That seems to suggest you arrcested licreland either
or over it, does it not? - A, Tes.

What is Mr. Broplly carrying? - A. 4 long shield with
Did veu see Mr. Drophy come into possession of

r 4

foe WO

Did wou sec hiwm esichange shields that morning? - 4.
First have one kind and then a different kiind? - 4.
notice,

on

his

the bLridge

left o

that long shield?

Ho.

1O

I did

Yes, 4o You agree? Do vou remember whether he had or not? - A, I
do net rememder. I was sgheac of him so I do not remember,

You see, in photegraph 20z he has @& long shield? - A, It wouls

anipear so,

snd 40a is talien before Zxhibit 21, 3, do vou agree? - 4, T would

et know from thae scene.

Thre railwow you wallk deown te the subk-

staticon by then? - 4, I do not recognise tie scene at all.

“leass now waite Brovhyvis statement and also vour own statement ..
JUDGE COLIS: Can we Jjust look at photogranh 40 and 40a?

“itet has happened to your tie? - A, I took it off., It is only

& clip-on tie. You unclip it and push it through the hole.

Is that beczuse yvou were hot? - A, Very, ves,

3

(Statemernt Fanded; Would vou look at the signature alleged to be
ours on tiie frent of Mr, Brophy's statemeni, <" Ifrom the date? -

e 1ES

Weuld yvou loolt at the signature said to be vours by vou on yvour
owr statement, again &Y from the wrong date azain? - A, Yes,

Looll at the two., Did wvou write voth of them? -~ 4, Yes, 1 didq.

Is there anything vou want teo sayv to the Jury now you have loolied
at the two of them together? - L. They are boith my signaturoe.

Do vou want to oifer anyvthinzg by word of explanation for any-
thiing now thial you have seen the two together? - A, No, thow

are botlr inina.

You were not injured on the 18th June 2t all, were vou? - A. 1o,

- 30—
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Do wyou often write wvour signature in lots ofdifferent wavs? -
A. Yes, I have a different one on my warrant card from those twvo.

loolt at it? - 4. Certainly, (Ccounsel exomined the

ou ot a Barclavecard or a bankexs card o1 driving licence? -
v I have sent if off somewhere .,... I have mv driving
iere., (Drivins licence handed to counsel;

you are the chap who wirote them, They are guite alilie, are thev
. In

Tou third: they are different? - 4, The middle name is missing
off the warrant card for a start.
JULGE CCLze: You say tThose are different., Lo you say
they are different from the signatures on those iwo statements? -
Ao They are all alike toc me, I kn
o] el

(0]
hey are my signatures but
- )

SITEI0T o s 0 s

It like tc somebody

Canr you leooit av in cf vou and loolr at wvour own
statement ona The A, Yes.
Tow write sloping all Foe A, LT domery .
JUDGT CCLZE: YTou are asiied to describe the signature on
those three Iiems - vour warrany card, vour driving licence
vour own suatenrent - and vou are bhelng asked vwihetiier vou agree
that vour hercwriiing on those three items slopes Torvard? -
e I thougzht I waoes Leing zasited how I signed ....
MRE. DL Thet dis vhat I wanted €tco Immow? - A, They seem

fhey seem to slone forward, Do they slope to the rig -

e Yes, to  thie right.

Loell at vour sigoature on lir. DBronhvie statement. Zoes that

slepe te tihe right or to the left?- A. Halflf-and-holf really,

Thie Tirst »oart slones to the left. he rest is central reallyvy.
we?  Your alleged
mmediately uncer the date,

4. Aas Tar as I see it, my

JUDGD CCLTs: You say the first half slopes to The »ight ...
s, i 1 tihien the "OOQREZ® ...,
MRS, BAIRD: hat are vou looking at? - A, This.

That is a photocopy. Arce veu right-handed? - 4, Yes,
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Is Drophy? - A, I do not know.

JUDGE COLES: I notice he is putting his warrant card avay
but, before he does, in view of his evidence, ought not the Jury
to see 117

1R, WALSH: Certainly they should. (Shown to Juryv)
- JUDGE CCIL S: There is no guestion of being hendwriting
experis here, members of the Jury. It is whether vou agree With
this folce“ wviienn he savs, "That is a description of my .rltlng“

VR. VALEE: FPerhaps they should see beth the warranit caid
and the driving licence. Ve think the warrant card should remain
il Court as an exhibit and not bhe photocopied,.

WD WITHNZIZSS: I am on duty tomorrow,

JUDGE CCLES: You will hiave to rely on M, Valsh,

1, i I will trv and make some arraingenents .. ..

2RE, SRTHD: s uld phictocopny just the sigrmature and

VS,
JUDGT CCLES: Is nhe to look at Brophy's statement before
e does 1tY

erstand what you are being asked tco dof? - A. Just to

(]

You said wou sigied veour name in different wayssometimes? - A,
i C sign my name,

Yell, counsel says that your writing appears to be differcent
o one document than on the other,., T de not knew wnethexr you
agree with that or net but you are being aslied to sign your
name as it appears on lMMr., Eronhy'!s statemenv so lool: at Mr.

~ophy's statement .... - 4. vhen I signed that 1T was leaning
on the back ol ... '

You are being asked to reproduce as necessary the conditdions

vou wvere in and sign it. (The witness went on the bench and
3 - . AY

sicned the pormer on the arm of a chair)

MRS, DATIRD: Can vou write your force number and the
division vou come Trom after wyour signature sach time,

JUDGE CCLES: This will be Exhibit 2z,




MRS, BATRD: You have looked at lMr. Brophy's sitatement
before you wrote that? - A, Yes,

ind you have tried to write the signature the way you wrote it

on Brophy's statement? - A. As I was asked to, vyes.

Hoore, did vou try your best fto make that signature look

2

the cne on Ir, Zrophyv'is statement? - &, Yes,

Lere vou prese

s, Can you soy that again?

L saild, were you prasent when I, Bronhyv wio
statement? - AL, Write my name?

[a N
1

JUDGE COLZS: Counsel is putting to vou vou
vour name at all? - A, Yes, I did.

;nd that, in fact, the other Cfficer, lr. Brophyv, signed your
name for you? - 4L, o,

You are bLeing asied whether you were there when he did 1i? -
i e dic noT.

e

hat about Sergeant Lrmstrong?  Did he Just sigrn his own name
A. O Const Zrophy'ls statement? His signature is there,
Vhen did iv getv there? - A, No idea

Certainly he did not witness vour signature on that statement
=]

then, did he? - 4, Lo idea, I carmot remember whether it was

there when I signed it or ....

i'r. Moore, wvou have teld lies about seeing lr, loreland throwing

=]
A

stones, have you net? ~ A, lo.
You have told lies about who arrested him? - A, No.

You have told lies about how you came to make your statement
<. No, '

iet vs weigh the guality of your evidence. Loolt at iir. Brophv's

statement and vour signature on it? - A, Yes,

Look &t vour ovn statemeni and your signature there on it? -
: Yes
AN s.

Hold them beth in your hand, TWow, look at the Jury and tell
em, did vou sign both those signatures? - A, Yes,

MRS, BaIRD: I have no Further questions.

(Luncheon Adjournment)

(Cross-Dxamined bv MR, MANSFIZLD)

Vould vou leoolx at Exhibit 30, Officer, the Wakefield

te vour name on i

id not sign

YTou did not sign his name on his sitatement,

1ik

ent when lMMr. Brephy wrote your name on his statemer

=

up?
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sihiotographs,.  YWould you just look through there at photograph
7 You are a lerseyside Officer and I am asliding each one that
omes, MNow, try to didentify who the lierseyside Officers are,
npreciate you may not lkinow Officers from other PEU's. In
that photograph there is one who is suggested by two witnesscs
now that the one second from the left next teo the Sergeant who
is wallding baclk towards the bridge is Inspector Bennett with

his browit zlove or gloves? - L. Yes,

[ )

- H oo

m
2
a

De vou agree that loolks like ir, Bennett? - 4. That one there?

Yes? - A, I would say so as well,

-

want you to loolr at other Officers in that photograph,

narticularly the ones nearest the camera with the sguare shields.

There is one near the coping stone where vou can see his fTace
and one just behind as well, Can you tell us who they are,

‘

please? - A, Mo, I camnot,

Tou cannot tell who either of tThem are? - A, Wo,

"

Loeliing at tie rhotograph generalily, is there any other Officer
i the photegranh wito vou inow 01 any name? - A, They are not
2ll lierseyside Ofiicers.

ppreciate thau but, ol the ones there are, are there any that

a
vou recognise? - L, lic, only Tnsnector Bennett.

Cross—onanined by MISSE RUSSTLL

You said, in amnswer to lrs, IZai 5 guestions this morning
o not seen a copy of your statement before vou
give evidence, is that right? - A, That is ¢

ot seen it jJjust befoxe vyou came into Court or, indeed,
st weel:t? - A, That 4is correct,

Cr, indesd, ot any time since vhatever doate 1t was wvou made 1t°7

Bronhiy's statement

-~
p

to Police Constable

1. 1A
[l

ime I smw that was vhen T signed it.

aw Folice Constable
16th June, 16847 -

So we can
Erophnv's

4. That is

‘nd the lest time veou saw yvour oWl 1s on some unlincown date when
vou, in fact, signed it? - A, Correct,

Ilad vou seen: anny of the plhictogranhs that yvou have been shown in
Court before todov? - AL o,

llenne at allt - &, o,

ilot a single »hotogzranh have vou been shown before you came into
=) poe ] - -

this witness box? = 4, lio,

Are you surc about that? - 4. Yes,

N
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So we can talze it that all your evidence has becen based on vour
rremory of last year? - A, That is correct.

I want to asl: you about your memory of last Saturday which should
be a bit better because it is a little more recent, Do you
romember last Saturdayv? -~ L, Yes.

You were o duty, were you neit? -~ &, VYes,

it Garston Folice Station? - ., Correct,.

Did someone come to see vou at Garste:. Police Station on
Saturday? ~ A, 1 camnot recall, no,

2. Scuth Yorksblre Detective come to Garston Police Station
on Saturdav? - L. ifot that I saw, no.

And the reason, $o0 you can understand it, for that South Yorlkshire
Jetcctive coming on Saturday was bhecause IMr, Walsh, on behalf of
tiie Crowvn, Iad asiked that any Cfficers wic were giving evidence
sieuld hove sight, to see if theyv could makke any icdentifications,
¢f the photographs? ~ A, Ho, T do not remember

You <o ot reomember that? - L. o,

You see, 1 vant te put vou c¢leariv in the picvture so0 vou can Lnow
viat the position iz to see whether vou will change vour answer
in any way to what vou lLave just said, Do you remember being in
2 room with Police Conztable Iwxeophy on Saturday and being shown
»hotographs Dy a South Yorkshire Detective? - &, o, I do not

well, if we were talking about something a year ago one would
magine thav "don't remember' might be a Tair enough answer but
e only tallking about scomething which happens the

IED

r
a v before vyou are giving evidence in front of this Jury
is it "I oo“‘u remenber" o1 dicd it not happen? - A. I cannot
remember,

i@ you sayﬂgg it might have happened and it just slipped vour
mind? - A, It may well have dene, I cannot remember,

Cfficer, is it usual that a ccuple of dayvs before vou are giving
eviderca in Court an O0fficer from another Force comes and gets

a whole group of vou inm & room to look at nhotogronhs? -~ A. I
would not hawve thought so.

is not a usual occurrence? - A, It has never happened to me

t
before,

|
|
So, il i® hoppencg ve you this Saturday, it is not someihing }
that 1s lilely to have missed your mind oW I am asking you

guestions? - 4. I do not remember it happening.

Whiat vere vyou doing on Saturday? Let us see how good vour
memory is,., You were on duty? - A, I was on mornings - seven
until three, '

That takes you into the aftermnoon - in the same small squad
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as Police Constable Brophy? - A. Yes,

And other members of your PSU from Garston? - A. I cannot
remember how many were at Garston now that date.

You s$ay you are familiar with the names in your PSU? - A, Yes.

Did you see any of those Police Officers around Garston Police
Station on Saturday? - A, Not that I recall, no.

Police Constables Scotland and Jones from your PSU - did you segeé
them on Saturday? - A. Yes.

Pclice Corstable Lutas? - A, Yes,

You saw all those Officers on Saturday? - A. Yes.

All on duty? - A. Yes.

And you do not remember that all of you were called to a roon
and seen by a South Yorkshire Detective with photographs? -
£. Ho.

Just to make it guite clear so you understand the position -
Police Consiable Erophy suggests theat you were in thai room

with those other Officers? - A. I do not remember.

You do not remember that as something that happened on Saturds

L. No.

“zve you any recollection at a2ll of heving your statement with
you on Saturcay? - A. No.
Did you have a copy of vour statement? - A. No.

Sc, agein, 1f Hr. Brophy says that he saw your statement on
Saturday, it cannoct have been you that showed him it? - A. It
was not me, no.

Apart from the possibility of somecne forging your signature,
Qfficer, there is no possibility that somebody else forged
vour identity and is wandering around Garston saying they

are Police Constable Moore, is there? - A, I would not think
S0O.

There 1s no other Police Constable Moore in your PSU, is
there? - A. No,

cu have no recollection at all of any incident like that on
aturday? - A. No,

g

Cross~Examined by MR, GRIFFITHS

You have tcld us, Officer, that you knew all the members of
your P5U? - A. I think I could recall the names. If you read

-

the names cout I could verify if they were there.

Well, I certainly can. I was going to do it with your
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‘A, Yes,
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Inspector Bennett when he came but you were there on the day.
Did you know them, or the meajority of them? You sald you knew
them all? - A, Yes,

Se did you know them by their Tfirst names? - A. Not all of them.

Which Officers in vour PSU did you know by their first names? -
A, Do you want me to say them all?

Tell us the ones you knew in your P3U by their first names? -
A. Constzble John Lutas, David Scotland, Paul Jones, Thomas
Brophy, Sergeant Thomas Armstrong, Sergeant Mordley -Robin,
Clive Finch .... I cannot think offThand of the others.

Have you been deployed with those Officers that you have named
on other cccasions as a single PSU since the 18th June of last
year? - A. Yes.

On approximately how many occasions? - A. Well, I have Dbeen on
PSU five times but it is & different group every time you go
so it might have been one or two or maybe more.

Did you know, amongst your PSU on the 18th, Police Constable
Paul Douglas? - A, I did not know his first name. He is =z
Sergeant now.

Is he a little older than you?” - A. I do not know.

We have heard, O0fficer, that after the 18th, on this Trip from
Liverpool, your PSU remained the rest of the week, returning

P - L

to Liverpcol on the Friday? - A. Friday afternoon, yes,

And in that week you were billeted altogether initially? -
that is right, agbout six to a room depending on the
accommodation,

During that week, no doubt, vou not only worked but you had
periods of leisure? - A. That is correct.

You were all away from home. I am not going into detail but
generally, did you go out on an evening's drinking and the like
and enjoying yourselves? ~ A. Generally.

Now, during that week after the 18th August how many persons
did vou come to realise your PSU hed arrested on the 18th? Do
vou understand the guestion? ~ A. I was not awars of any number.

You knew that, according to you, you had arrested one. Are
you saying that there was no loose talk amongst you and your
cclleagues over a pint or anything like that that led you to
understand that more than just your arrested person was
arrested? Is that what you are saying? - A. I knew more than
one had been arrested initially.

My guestion was this: during the week that followed before you
returned to Liverpool, how many persons approximately did you
come to understand were arrested by your PSU? Now, that is a
pretty clear question? - A. There was never any number quoted to
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me. I have no idesz how many were arrested.

Do you mean there was no talk amongst you as to now many had been
roped in? - A. Arrested? Not to me, no.

was there any mention during that week of Mr. Scargill? -
A. Between us?

Yee? - A, VWe knew he was there on the HMonday.

You knew he was there and no doubt you have television in your
harracks? - A. Yes.

ind no 4o Hews that

M, Scarg caeme to

Ynow that

New, was there any discussiocn ameongst you and your colleagues

as to how Mr. Scargill had incurred that injury or had becoms

injured on that day? -~ A. lo.

Was the topic menticned? -~ A, No.

Mot? - A, Mo,

Did you come to know that one of your members of your P3U had

sctuelly gone to Hctherham Hospital in the same ambulance as

tr, Scargill? - AL Yes, '

Voo 2147 - AL Yes.

it wag Faul Douglas, was i1t nct? - A, I belisve =0,

Did Paul Douglas tell you that himself? ~ A. Yes, hs cid

If he told you that himself, presumably he fold you, or

explained, how it came to be that he was Travelling in an

ambulance with Fr. Scargill to Rotherham General Hospiztal? -

A. I recall him saying he had been in an ambulance and Hr.

Scargill was next to him but I am not sure what he was doing

in the ambulance.

According to you, he never expiained to you how it came to be

e was in that ambulance? - A. Not that I can recall,.

Did he tell you, at any stage, that the reason why he was in

the ambulance was thaf he was accompanying an injured picket

to hosg=tal? - A. Ko, he did not.

So does your evidence amount to this: that even though you

are with the rest oi your P5SU all week, you had n¢ idea that

that PSU had arrested six persons, in fact, six out of the 15

here itoday? You had no idea that the level was that high,

is that what you are saving te the Jury? - A, Yes.

Triere was no locse talk wnich led you teo believe that? - A, o,
zugzest you are not telling thwe trath z2ooucs ey

A. (No response)
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Cross~Examined by MR. REES
“r, loore, do ycu remember whether lMr. Moreland was given
rezson for his arrest? - A. Yes, he was told at the time by
Corstable Broghy.
Whnal reason was he given? - A, He was told he was bheing arrest
for taking part in an unlawful assembly.
Mow, do you know whoese idea it was {o arrsgst him for that
specific and fzirly rare offence? - A, I do not guite ge
cuegstion,

2 wag arresisd for taking part in an unlawiul assembly, H
was not arrested for threatening behaviour or assault on Po
Wihese ides was 1t, yours or Mr. Brophiy's, that he should bhe
arrested for that specirfic offence? - A. Constsble Ercphy
grrested nim. I Jjust assisted in the arrest.

Jic it come &% & shock or a2 surpriss to you thai he was &
for unlawful assembly? - A, Not necessarily, no.
Were you expecing arrests o be made for unlawiul gssemblyv?
AL, Yes, &% The scen
Why were you gxpecting That? Had there been any discussion
shbout it Teforehand”? A. Tot as such, no.
Gi¢ not say, We will arre
fes, we 4 not.

Thart was not
Do you know how 1t
&8s

Mo idea? -~ A. HNo.
Ther
A, Not that I
thet

ul

No order
Tor unlaw?

-
Fa

Cer nlj you wer

™
VVVVV or upward
s

— .. -
Lor vnlgmg‘ b1

wWe come back to the question I asked you earlier - were you
not a little surprised then when Police Constable Broohy,

> the blue apparently because ithere had been no discuszion
it, came out with "unlawful assembly"? - A, I WaS not
gurprised, nc.

was there no discussicn in the van when vou wers waitine o
be deployed earlier in the day about what oilence arrests

—_ 4

came abouft he
embly as copposed to something

was ne discussion about i
am aware of.

were ar“esue T
I cannot remes

A

the begi

(=N

nning? - A,

else? - A, No.

£t that you were

told by any senior Officer

o by e
TiaxT

no.

Sergeant,
by your PSU were :

aware of?

any

was arrested for unlawful

To

out

G
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would be for? - A, There was no discussicn, no.

Did you ¥now that all six of the arrests uncertaken by your
PSU that day were, in fact, for unlawful assembly? - A. o, I
was noit aware of that.

~3

i)

Jul

£ is the first you have heard of it today? - A. Yes.

Does that surprise you? - A. Not particularly, noc.

. . e . . . . I -
Jere you not surprised that it was not threatening behaviour? -
£, T was not surprised, no.

T4 oyou snesk to Mr. Eroghy afterwzrds and say, YaWny 4did ovouw do
nim for that?" - A, HNo,

You never raised the cuesticon? - A, T never azsked him.

Did you chat to the other boys in the PSU about what they had
made arrests for? - A, No.
You are telling the truth, are you noit? - A. Oh, yes.
wWmet is your understanding of "unlawful assembly? - A, Assembl:
for an unleawiul purpcse. They were there for an unlawful purpos
It was a mass picket.
Dc you have there an album of photogranhs, Exhibit 21, photo-
graph 2 That is a photograph sheowing aprarently two men who
mave pesn detained being led away by Two pairs of 0fficers? -
A, Yes, Trheit s correcT.
2t the tric of pecple on the left of ithes photoe-
it from me that the arrestee in that photograch
named Coston whno 1is one of the Defendants in
. Yes.

two Officers with him? - A, Yes,

They both appear to be Merseyside Officers? I say that because
of the helmets? - A, Yes, .
Do you recognise either or both of them? - A. As far as 1 am
awers .... the shin pads we were wearing did not strap con under
our beoots like that sc either they are another divisicen or frem
another Force.

There are different kinds of shin pads. - We see there cn thaz
phetogranh all the Officers, ceriainly three ¢f them, have snin
pads which are worn under the treousers and it aproears to have
some kind of strap which goes under the foot itself? - A. Yes.
wWg o have seen 1in other

iz owaaring them -

0ol the wousers and -
A, Yes,

Arg tney diirerent
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different ways? - A. I think there are three types. There

is

a small type which buckles on the back. They are the old ones

How far do they extend frcm the knee? - A, They go right down.

From the knee to the ankle? - A. Yes,and ycu pult them on th
outside and are either yellow or bhrown and there are old cn
with buckles on the back.

What about the type on the photograph? - A

. I have not come
the type with the elasticated bottom like tha

t.

iy

I+ follows from that you did not have thoss on? - A. I cann
rararbher what tvpe I had on but it was not those. I mavs on
seen that type,

Jnat is the third tvpe? - A, I zm not sure whether we nad t«
then, We hnave had them since. They are long and black and
put them underneath the trousers and have btelcro fastening.
Tne same materizl a2s is in the shield just oenwwd vou? - A,
the black materizgl,

How, pack te that photograph, is it & Tair inference ITrom w
you are saying then that Officers wvearing the kind of shin
shown in that chetogreph would not be from ycur BSU? It is
not a trick guestiion? -~ A. I definitely do not recogniss th
tvpe of gnin pad.
o o you recggnise eitner of theose two Officers? — AL Zeifiniz
not, no,

Re-Examined by R, WALSH

Would you look at the big colour photograpn with a magnii:
glass, page 8, the blurred one? Now, it is suggested, o
alleged, that the Officer apparenily running on the right o
that photograph - and there is only one who is obviously on

I‘j (/

the rignt - I think it is alleged on behazlf of the Defendant

Moreland, that that is you ....

MRS. BAIRD: That is putting it rather strongly. 1 s
my case 1s that that was hin.

MRL. WALSH: Let ug see 1if we can deal with it in any
event:
We all appreciate that photograph is blurraed but, firsi of
looking at 1t under the magnifying glass, is it possible o
distinguish the features of the face of that Cfficer so you

can say from that who it is? - A, No.

Would you look at the shculder of the O0fficer, the only one
we can seg, his right shoulder, under the magnifying olass
Tsg there anything there Lo help you? - A. Lo.

We know that when somebogy is moving, whatsver badges there
pecome olurred in lines. How many lines do you sec when

-
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looking at it under that magnifying glass? - A, It is split
into four. It locks l1ike & collar number.

1s there any Police rank that has four separate .... - A. There
are four lines and then & siiver dot. That would be a collar
number plus & button. Four numbers of the lierseyside Fclice.

Are the nurbers spaced in that way so you wculd get con a
,notoovaon four lines parallel to each other or not? -~ A. It
depands wnat type of number the Officer is wearing.

Can you tell, therefore, whether that Officer is an Inspector,
z Constable, or what? He is cobvicusly not a Sergeant becauss
ne has not any stripes on. Look at 1T und=ar the glass? - 2. MHe
is probably a Constable with a blue shirt.

You can see the colour of the shirt, can you? - A, I thst is
wnat tha is.

T do noi want you 10 guess. Cean you say .... - A. To me it
looks liks he has got a blue snirt on.

And are we To understznd thai, in the Merseyvside Constabulary,
Police Officers wear blue shirts and Lnsoectors wear wniie? -
., They did then,

at the foot of the 0fficer under the glass?
d eye there is what looks to be a vertical line
© his heel? - A. Yes.

r'i
[§)]
! -4
et

1

4 -~ - — EER = - ~ =, ey oy e
iinder the glass, can vou 2t tThat is? - A, You canrct
-_—— —_- 4+ . -
se2 for certain what it is.

You have pcinted that cout on ancther photo
black svd white cne, an 0fficer, not you, wi
wearing wnat you described as pads with SCMS'
under the shoe? - A, Yes.

If you lock at Exhibit 21, photograpnh 8, z2nd look at the
OCfficer fu ther to the right of the pheotograph and look ax
his back foot which is rzised? - A, Yes

There is a white strap or something like that? - A. Yes,

Now, yocu say thait ycur particular P5U did not have that type
of Tastening, or you perscnally did not? -~ A. As far as I =am
aware, the two van-lcads of O0fficers of our equipment van did
not have that type of nad in it.

Bui, more pariicularly, what about you yourself? - A. Thai ig
the first time I have seen that type.

MRL O WALESH I nave no other guestions but can I N
twe matiers before this Cfficer gces. Toomromised youn
I would make enguiries about his warrant card, I nhave caused
P”I’“gEuu.ts o be made that The warrant card can stay here
and that ne can be issued with a2 new one at Liverzool TOTIOW
?r@vioeu he has a receipt from the Court siuving whers his




warraent card now i1s and I gather that document has been prepared.

JUDGE COLES: Yes, anag I have signed it,

. WALSH: Triz other matter is this: my learned frie
Baird, in the very first question she asked this morning, ask
Tind ficer if he went Dack home to Liverpool last night. I

1
this OF am
sure she will be content to agree that that arrangsment was made
vesterday evening with tThe agrecement of those instrudding me and
those instructing her,

MRS, EAIRD I macde no point abcut that. I understand this
Dfficer's wife has just had a taby. I have no right to stos hicx
Zoing up.

MR, WALSH: BEefore I proceed to the next witness, can I make
an epplicaticn tThat the Exhibits theat are the pheitocopy of
Eropnv's statement and the original of licore's statement, the
specimen signatu znd the warrant card and driving licence e &
relzazed ind h Ustecy © rosecution so I c¢can do whazt I
T014 my lezarned Iriend, Mrs . I would ¢o as socn a&s ihils
Officer had completed hisg e ?

JUDGE CoLzZS Very well.
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MR. REES: May I make an administrative application?
There are two separate exhibits, one of which incorporates
the other and there are two sets of photographs, Cne is
Exhibit 17, the limited bundle of photographs, the other is
Exhibit 30, Exhibit 30 incorporates everything that is in
Exhibit 17. The suggestion which has kindly come from those
who instruct me is that if the actual Exhibits 17 are returned
to the Defence; we can make them up to The complete bundle
so we will just have one Exhibit,

JUDGE COLES: Very well,
MR. MANSFIELD: The same applies to Exhibit 8,

MRS, BATRD: I am conscious the blow-ups have noit been
exhibited,

JUDGE CQLES: They are duplicates of Exhibit 30, numbers
8 and 9, and there have just been reproduced extra copies in
a different size, I do not thinlk they need specific exhibit
numbers.,

POLICE CONSTABLE PAUL DOUGLAS Sworn
Examined by MR, WALSH

MR, WALSH: Is your name Paul Douglas? - A. Yes,
You are a Sergeant in the Mersevside Police Force? « A, Ves,
Stationed at? ~ A, Marsh Lane, Bootle,

In June of 1384 were you a Police Constable staticned at Hope
treet Police Station in Liverpool? -~ A, That is correct,

Is that suburban or central Liverpool? - A, It is central |
liverpool, sir, |

On Monday, 18th June of last year, were you at or near the
premises of the Orgreave Coking Plant, Highfield Lane? -
A, I was, sir,

¥Were you a member of a PSU?- A, I was, vyes.
You were not a Sergeant at the time? - A, No, sir.

Who was the Inspector in charge of your PSU? - A, The Inspector
was Mr., Bemmett.

We know a PSU dis split up into two halves., Who was the
Sergeant in charge of your particular .... - 4, Sergeant
Moodley,

Had you been to Orgreave previously? - A, No, sir,

Have you been to Orgreave since? ~ A, Yes, six,

When was the next time after the 18th June? ~ A, It was when
I was on a PSU to this Socuth Yorkshire Police ¥orce. We
were stationed at Bawtry. We were sent to Orgreave after
being deployed at Silverwood Colliery, T do not know why

At d.
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we were sent there. There was nobody there.

Did you do any actual work or duty on that occasion? - A, Not
at Orgreave,; no,

And approximately when was it, how long after the 18th June? -
A, I think it would be Octobexr, sir. The end of October,

So far as your PSU is concerned, how much, if any, training
had you done as a member of a PSU before the 18th June? -
A, Prior to the 18th June, 1984, T had been engaged in PSU
training since approximately 1978,

And how frequently? - A. Between 1978 and 1980 appreximately
once-or-twice a year, Once every six months, T think, Aftex
1981 it became a bit more freguent, possibly three {times a
year.

And when you trained, was that always with the same men or
different men or how did it work? - A. My training would have
been sometimes with the same Officers and, following a move
from one Police Station fto another Police Station, with the
Officers I was working with at the time.

Does that mean that groups of vou from the same Police Station
would go together for training? -~ A. That is correct,

So far as those of wyou in your PSU on the 18th were concerned,
those of you who were under Sergeant Moodley, had you trained
with any of them before? - A, No, siir,

Is there any particular reason for that or not? -~ A, After 12081
and the riots in Liverpool, the rict shield training became
more freguent but roundabout this time it scemed to die a
death and there was wvery little going on.

What about these in the other part -~ Sergeant Armstrong's
group., Had vou trained with them? -~ A, No, =zir,

So how did it come about that, on the 18th Jume, you were in
this PSU and in Mr. Moodley's sectiom of 1it? - A. Basically
because it was my turn to go.

Was there a rota or something? - A, Well, there had been one
PSU from my section prior to then but my wife ....

Going to Orgreave? - Ad. No, one went to Wales and one went
to Nottinghamshire, I think, On both occasions my wife was
pregnant and then gave birth so I asked if I could
particulady be excluded and mytaby was four weeks old when
I went on this one and I was told more-~or-~less, "It is your
turn to go'.

So you go to Orgreave that day with this PSU? - A. Yes, sir,.
Do vou remember about what time you got {here? - A. We
arrived at Orgreave about half-past-five in the morning, I
think,

And we Xnow that you go in, I think, three vans? - A, That is
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And what did you do when you arrived? ~ A. Immediately we
arrived there was a lot of activity at the rear of the plant
and regquests were being made for PSUs to go to the rear of
the plant itself. We had only been Tthere about five—or~ien
minutes, We parked the vehicles and received instructions
to go to the rear of the coking plant,

When you talk of the "rear'", so we know where you are talking
about, can you be a little more specific as to what you
called the front and the back? -~ A, The front I would call

on Highfield Lane opposite the building the Pdice were

using and we had to go through the coking works itself o get
to the rear.

Would vou look at a large aerial photograph that you may find.
(Handed) Just take a moment to get your bearings on that,

I think, without leading impreoperly, I can point to the fact
that that small building where the Police had their HQ is
where my finger is at the left-hand side of the plant? -

A, Yes,

The road is Highfield Lane going across to the middle of
the photograph and over the railway bridge and that is, in
fact, uphill all the way and opposite that block there is
the main gate to the coking works which are here? -~ A, That
is corxrrect,

Can you point to whereabouts vou went first of all when you
say vou went to the back? -~ 4, There is a small bridge over
a brook or something. We were deployed to that area.

You are pointing at the farthest extremity of the plan, as
we see it, towards the top of thephotograph? - A, Yes, sir,.

How long were you there abouit? - A, I think we were there
for about half-an-hour, maybe 45 minutes,

Did you do anything while you were there? -~ A. No, we were
instructed to put our equipment on and walk to the front by
where the crowd had gathered,

You did not do anything at the back and then you were instructed
to go to the front? - A, No, sir.

I am sorry? -~ A. As we were making our way to the back of the
plant, we were told to pult on our equipment, shin pads and
helmet, and we got to the rear of the plant, we parked the
vehicles and walked out with riot shields to just by where
this bridge was. There was also a chainlink fence going

all the way round. There were several hundred people there,

JUDGE COLES: S0 you were wearing your riot gear
throughout the 30 « 45 minutes you have talked about? - A, Yos,
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MR, WALSH: Were you actually called into action to do
anything at that point? -~ A. We were told to walk down to
the front but the crowd that was at the rear of the plant
began to disperse and move back down to the front.

So when you came back round to the front whereabouts did vyou
go? ~ A, On to the car park in front of the reception area
for the coking works,

And if you can give us an estimate, about how long did vou
stay there before anything else happened? - A, A good few
hours. Three-or-four hours,

Tid a time come when vou and your unit left the car park? -
As Yes, sir, from where we were parlked we could hear & 1o
of noise, shouting, coming from cur left which would be the
fields by Highfield Lane,

If vou could tell us whether you were facing uphill or
downhill at the time? - A, Uphill, before the railway bridge.
We could not see what was going on, although we could see
missiles in the air. We could not see anvthing else apart

from that,.

We know that, during the course of that morning, a convoy cf
lorries went into the coking works lower down Highfield Lane,
spent about an hour inside and then came out laden. Where
were wvou when that happened? - As We were on the car park
when the wvehicles came in, VWhen the vehicles were getting
ready vo come out, we were deploved in full riot gear onto
Highfield Lane,

Whereabouts onto Highfield Lane? -~ A, Not very far aleng.
About a matiter of only 20 vyards, mayvbe less, up Highiield
Lane from the coking plant., We were lined up across the

road in that position when the vehicles left,

So presumably they would be passing behind wou? ~ A, That
is correct,

And what were you doing at the time the lorries want out
behind vou, your particular unit? - A, Nothing was going on
in front of us. Ve were just standing in a line,

Facing which way? -« A, Up Highfield Lane away from the plant
towards the railway bridge. VWe stayed there until the vehicles
left., Nothing was happening.

What did you do? -~ A, Went back into the car park,

How close to the cordon of Police Officers that was across
both Highfield Lane and the field, which would be on the
left of the road as you look up the hill, were you when
you were cut there at the time of the departure of the
lorries? - A, From the position we were standing in on
Highfield Lane, the field on the left, as far as I can
remember there was nobody there, They had moved away from
there. I personally was surprised to find out that grecen
ares was where the troublse was in the mornming beconnse it
looked so quiet,

-
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What time do you think this was when the lorries went oul?
A, I think it would be about 10 o'clock in the morning,

Well then, you are there with your unit and then you are
stood back down in the car park? - A. That is right.

How long were vou in the car park? - A. We were in the car
park until about another one hour to one-and-a-half hours,
unitil we were called out again, '

So, on your timing, that takes us to 11 to 11,307 - A. That
is correct,

¥ho called wyou out? - A, Well, we were standing on the car

park coeoe
Dressed how =zt that time? -~ A, Basically as I am ncw,

Did you have any riot gear on at that stage? - A, Cricket boxes,
that is all. VWhile we were there in the car park I heard over
the radio the Police Control Room celling out for short shield
units ry

So what did your unit do? -~ A, Inspector Bennett told us to
put our equipment on.

Did you do that? - A, We did, sir, vyes.

And what equipment did you vourself pnt on? -~ A, Rio% helmeil,
shin pads, that was all and, of course, riot shield.

N

Was the shield that yvou had long or short? - A, Shori, sir,

¢

There are two short shields ~ one %o your left and cne below
to your right. They are different designs. Is either of them
similar to the one you had? ~ A, Yes, sir, this one.

That is the one with the black border. Having equipped
yourself in that way, where did you go? ~ A, We were told to
go out onto Highfield Lane to the rear of the main Police
cordorn,

So just at the present moment you are in the car park and
then you have to go out to the rear of the main cordon? -
A, Yes, sir,

Would you be able to tell us whereabouts on Highfield Lane

the main cordon was - either by telling us how far you had

to go or looking at some photographs or something like that? -
A. As we left the main gate and turned left up Highfield Lane,
we travelled about 30 yards but we would be about 30 to 40
vards up Highfield Lane.

Would vyou like to lock at the aerial photograph again and
possibly the album of photographs 9. We loek up Highfield
Lane from a point slightly above the gate to the coling
works, the gate being on your left and behind you if wou are
the cameraman? - A, Yes,
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Is there anything on that photograph or the next one that
assists yvou or does the aerial photograph help you more? -
A, From what I can remember, I think we would have bLeen
in much the same position as the photographer would have
been when he took this one.

That is photograph 1 .se4
JUDGE COLES: That was where the cerdon was?
MR. WALSH: No, that is where they were:

Is that right? - A, That is where we were, There were cother
Police Officers in front of us,

Se you are about in the position of the cameraman and how far
ahead of wou is the corden? - A, Well, it was very deep.

It must have been ten or more Police Officers deep and right
across the road,

Could vou see where it extended to cnto the field? - A, I
cannot honestly remember, sir,

Well now, what was happening as you got to the cordon? VWhat
could yeu see? = A, The first thing that caughtour attention
as we came up behind the cordon were missiles coming over the
top. There was a barrage of missiles coming from the sky.

We could not actually see through the O0fficers that were in
front of us.

Were you able to see anything of what was ahead of the Cifficers
on the road or further up the hill? - A, Well, eventually I
could see a mass of people,

When you say Yeventually", what do vou mean? -~ A. Police
Officers were falling down injured. Others were picking them
up and moving them out of the way. There was a constant
movement before we were given any instructions,

When that movement {oock place, what were you able to see? -
A, Males throwing things, things rolling down the road - oil
drums -~ and a great deal of debris in general,

Again, concentrating on this particular time, were vou able
to gain any impression of the numbers of people on the
other side of the Police line? - A, At this particular time
I reckoned there to be about 200,

Hers you are coming up to the Police liwe from behind it.

What did you do when you arrived at that position? - A, We
were told to form up. 4 senior Officer with a loudhailer

was behind us and he told us to form up.

So that was not Inspector Bemnett? ~ A. No, sir, Inspector
Bennett was at the front of us,

Did you know this senior Officer or not? - A, No, sir, I did
not,

Chol
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Were yeou able to see what rank he was? «~ A, AlL I could see
at the time was a white shirt so I knew he was an Inspector

or above.

You are wearing a white shirt .... = A, At the time T was
wearing a blue shirt,

So he gave the order for you teo form up and did you? - A, Yes,

In what sort of formation? - A, In twe lines basically - our
PSU alongside the other half of our PSU.

Your half is ten people? ~ A, Yes,

Dces that mean you are in two lines one behind the other? -
4, No, sir, two lines at the side of one another.

And a gap beitween the two? « A, We formed up alongside each
other but this time the main body of Police Officers were
still together. They had not moved.

JUDGE COLES: S0 the cordon is across the road and ftheir
PSU is standing back from the cordon ten~deep?

MR. WALSH: In two lines of ten pecplile? - A, Yes, sir,

Does that mean each line would have the Sergeant at the front?
A, That is correct,

And the Inspector would be where? - A, He was at the front as
well.

You are told to form up by a senior Officer with the loudhailer
and yvou form up, How long do you stay in this formation
vosition hefore anything happens? - A, Not very long at all,

What happened next? -~ A. No sooner had we formed up than the
instruction was given for the main body of Police Officers
to split themselves apart.

Was that given by the same man with the loudhailer or

somebody else? - A, I heard that on the loudhailer. T presume
it was the same man with the loudhailer, It was coming from
behind,

Did the cordon open up? - A, We were instructed to draw staffs,
truncheons, ‘ ' -

By whom? -~ A, By the chap with the loudhailer and the order
was confirmed by Inspector Bennett.

S0 then what? -~ A, The main body was told to split and we
were told to charge them.

Who said that? - A, Once again, the chap with ihe loudhailer.
Was that confirmed by Inspector Bemmett? ~ A, No, sir, wo

were instructed to charge and, at that time, not o take
prisoners, not to arrest anybhodv.
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S¢ what were you told fo do, if anything,

A, To push them back up Highfield Lane,

on the charge? -

Could you see what it was that required them {to be pushed

back up Highfield Lane? VWhat was the reason

was necessary for them to be pushed baclt? ~ A,
There was a constant
stream of missiles and the Police 0fficers without any
protective equipment were being hit by the missiles being

hurling very many objects at us

thrown,

Were you able to see whether any of the Police Officers in
the ceocrdon had any protective equipment?

as to

why 4t

They were

Of what natuwre? - A, There was a line ¢f long shields and
also the Officers with the long shields had protective helmeis

on but behind tihwse Officers were (Officers

uniforms with ordinary helmets.

in ordinary

When you set off, did you know how far you were to go? -~
A, Well, I naturally assumed we would be going until we ware

told to stope.

Sc had wyou any sort of knowledge of the exact distance? -~
A, T did not know how far we were going to go.

How close teo the front were wyou? - A,

Just behind the Sergeant? - A, Yes,

¥Vhren the Police lines opened up

» did vou go through in the

At the very front,

same Tormation as you were standing or not? - A, A8 the main

Tormation opened up we ran Through and,

front; we basically split up.

as we got to the

Fanning out? - A, Yesy; so we ended up in a line of about
we covered the width of the road,

And about how far did wvou go? -~ A, About 50 vards fto the
other side by the Portacabin on photograph 2,

You had better point to it? -~ A. There,

& o

- A, I think some did,

LI}

That is the portable building on the right partly obscured by

the bush? - A, Yes, sir,

And what was the situation as you went over that distance? -

A. There was still a lot of missiles being thrown from the

middle of the rear of the group
turned around and began to run.

You told us you went about 50 yards.
you stopped? -~ A. We received an order to hold our ground,

From? ~ A, T am not too sure.

And did you hold your ground? -

~57~

The males at the front

I think it was Inspectar
Demnett but I am not sure about that,

A,

We stopped,

YES,

Bow did it come about
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What happened then? -~ A. The people who had run off from the
front stopped on the road again - a bit like cat and mouse
and meore things were thrown at us,

You had gone forward about 50 vards through the Police cordon
that had broken to let you through? - A. Yes,

What happened to the Policemen that yvou had left behind in
the cordon? - A, It was only when I stopped that I saw they
nad moved up behind us and we were in the same position or
rather they were walting behind us now for the next advance,

S0 they are now caught up with you? - A. Yes,.

What is the next thing that happens? - 4, There were large
articles coming dowvn the roadway - big gas cylinders, oil
drums - there was a car there which had been burnt ocut, or

a car that was on fire actually. I *think we waited in that
position., It seemed a long time. I think it must have been
a couple of minutes,

And what? - A, Whilst in that position, before we had any
orders to move on again, the biggest items which were coming
down towards us and, indeed, in front of us were moved out

of the way. We then received the order to charge again, All
the time we were still under az barrage of missiles,

And when you received the order to charge again, did vou do so?
A, Yes, sir. VWe were told to get to the Dridge this times
"Go to the bridge®,

Can vou recall which Cfficer gave that crder? .. A, That one
came over the loudhailer.

Does that mean they are still behind you? - A, Yes, sir,
And did you go to the bridge? - A, We did, sir, yes.

Your help please, Starting at photograph 3 and looking at
4 and 5 and, if necessary, 6, could you say how far forward

you went? - A, We got, on photograph 4, to the start of the
bridge °

¥s that where we see the lamppost? - A, Yes, but there was
wire strung across the road.

WYhereabouts? -~ A, About knee-level,

I mean whereabouts in the photograph? - A, T think it was tied
te the lamppost but it went right across the road.

You are pointing to the lamppost at the right at photograph
Lo -~ A. Yes,

And yeu think it was that lamppost? - A, T think so, sir.
What happened when you reached this wire? -~ A, Up until this
peint, when the crowd had dispersed some had gone on the field

again so not only were we being stoned from the front, wve
were also Deing stoned from the side.
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If yvour recollection is right, this wire is either just as
vou reach the bridge or just before you get to it? - A, As
far as ¥ can remember; it was where the lamppost is at the
start of the brick wall,

You got te the wire and it is about kKnee-height? - A. It was
not very tight,

Did it remain in that position or what? - A. No, sir, T
pérsonally shouted back to the O0fficers behind me that there
was wire across the road., The charge had come to a halt

at this stage. There was also, on the bridge itself, another
large gas canister, quite a big one,

You are pointing to photograph 47 - A, That is correct.
JUDGE COLES: A big gas canister? -~ A, Yes,
MR. WALSH: Did wvou see where that had come from? -

A, It just appeared to roll,

JUDGE COLES: Where did you say it was? ~ A, On the top
there,

MR, WALSH: Are wyou pointing to where you first saw it ...,

A, There was one further down here, This was a second one,
It was starting to roll down the hill,

You said the line had come to a stop? « A, Yes,

(Short Adjournment)

MR, WALSH: We had got you to the bridge and you stopped
there? ~ A, Yes, sir,

-¥hat was happening when you were there? -~ A, When we got %o

the bridge I could see exactly what was on the other side
over the hill ....

You are still at this position in photograph 4 mnear that
lamppost? - A, No, further up than that,

Take it on that photograph or photograph 6, whichever is
the more helpful, Do any of those help vou to tell us
where you got to? - A, Yes, photograph 6, Jjust on that bend
on the right hand side of the road,

Do you see there are some lampposts? - A. That is correct.

You cannoct see the one at the top nearest the camera., Can
you point to somewhere where your line stopped? - A, We were
forced to stop before the bridge. We were not given the

order to stop. We were forced to stop because of the
obstructions. Once they were cleared we basically walked

oir to the bridge itself which is only a matter of vyards,

When we were on the bridge, that is when we were toeld to halt,

But now you are telling us about photograph 6 which is
slightly .... the view is on the bridge and slightly over it?

A, That is correct,

L
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Vhere was it the line halted? ~ A, V¥We came to a straddiing
halt, VWe were not in formation, T was roundabout there,
still at the front..

You are pointing to the stone wall and between the first two
lampposts that we see? - A, That is correct.

So you are, in fact, over the bridge and nct on it? - A, That
is correct,

T think you peointed about halfway between those two lampposts,
did you? - A, That is correct. I was hovering about there.

o far as your colleagues were concerned, whereabouts where
they in relation to you? - A, Some straddled up the resar on
the road coming up; some were on the left of the bridge Jjust
round the corner on the opposite side of the roadway to where
I was, T was by that wall there. There were other colleagues
straddling up the rear and others on the other side of the
road to where I was,

The left hand side of the road as we lock at it? ~ A, Yes, sir,

And when you tallk about those straddling up at the rear, is
that where they stopped cx did they come up to you? - A, They
came up to where I was. I was Fforemost,

And so did a line, whether it is loose or solid, form at
about the place you have told us? - A.Yes, sir,

About how many men did that comprise? - A, Well, all our
lads eventually got up to where I was,

That is wyvour PSU? - A, Yes,

Were there any other people in addition to vour PSU? -

A, There were, yes., There were South Yorkshire Officers,

I do not know if they were in a PSU or what or whether they
WEeTe aooa

How did you know they were South Yorkshire? - A, They had
different helmets on., .

Different from yours? - A, Yes, different riot helmets,

What indicated they were South Yorkshire as opposed to ,...
A, At the time, sir, the South Yorkshire Officers had SYP
on the back of their helmets and they did not have a Jjacket
band,

Are you saying that is what these Officers had on - SYP? -~
A, I only saw one Officer at that time.

You are stood. This line of Tolice has formed. V¥here are
the pickets at this time? —~ A, WVhen T got to that position
from originally thinking there were about 200~300 involved,
when T looked along Highfield Lane, the road, as far as I
could see, was just thick with people. There were
absolutely thousands of them.
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Were they in the road only? - A, There were so many of them,
They were from the garden walls on the other side of the
fence, on the left hand side of Highfield Road. Absolutely
thousands, ' ‘

If vou look at photograph 7, there is a view which may not
be exactly the one you had but certainly nearer than the
cameraman is in photograph 67 - A, Yes, sir,

Because obviously photograph 7 is taken a little further over? -
A, Yes, siT,.

Do you see on the left of photograph 7, first of all, the
wooden fence and then grass and small trees and that sort of
thing? - A, Yes, =silr.

Do vou remember seeing that view that day or scomething like
it¢? - A, I do remember that, sir, ves.

And I should tell you these photographs were taken many montns
later, I think, in early spring of this year. What was the
situation like, for example, tTo the left of the road, can you
remember? =~ A, To the left of the road there was a factory of
some description which was on the railway embankment. There
were lots, hundreds, of people in and around that factorw
itself, There were people who were Jjust standing or watching
what was going on. There were others who were throwing things
from the yvard over to where we were,

Now, vou have stood there in your line, A%t that point are
there any Police Officers ahead of you where wvoul are or are
veu the front line? « A, No, I was at tThe front. OJur PSU was
at the front,

And so Tfar as any Police support behind you seee ~ A, It took
a long time coming up.

But it eventually came or had you moved on before it came or
what? - A, It seemed to be guite a while until it came,

Were you stationary there or .... «- A, No, we were basically
sort of milling around because we were still having things
thrown at us, The rest of our unit had not come up at that
time, Our stragglers took their time in getting up and the
other Officers probably took about 30 or 40 seconds. It seemed
veryv long indeed,

What was the next thing that happened to you? - A, When our
suppoert came up, that is, when we had a line, all I was doing
for the time I was standing still, moving around, dedging,
watching what was going on, looking at the pecple in the
factory as o

What is the next thing that happened? - A. T{ was when I was
there, I would say roundabout there, walking up ....

You are looking at photograph 7 and vou are slightly uphill
of the nearest lamppost, VYou are pointing to the pavement?
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A, Yes, sir, Whilst in that position other Cfficers came up.
The Officer alongside me was a South Yorkshire Officer,

You are demonstfatihg with.your arm as ﬁhough e was on your
left? ~ A, Hewas on my left, and he had a long shield,

Did you know his name at that stage? - A, No, sir.

Did you discover his name at. some time of the day? ~ A. Yes,
What is his name? ~ A, It slips my mind for a second, I cannot
thi}lk of it * o 88

It may come back to you as we go along. Perhaps you can tell
us wiiere and when it was vou discoevered what his name wvas? -~
A, Well, I discovered what his name was later on in the
hospital,

We can get to it, I suppose, a little later, buit this Constabls
was on your left? - A, Yes, sir,

Angd vou are about to tell us something? - A, It was at this
peoint where I first saw the Defendant; O'BErien.

And vou have peinted ocut approximately where you were, where
do you say that the Defendant, O0'Brien, was? - A, As far as

I can remember, sir, he was, I think, inbetween that lamppost
and that lamppost. That is the second and third lempposte.

Inbetween lamppost 2 and lamppost 3 -~ in the road cr on the
pavement? -~ A, As far as T can remember, sir, he was on I
pavement but I think he was pretdtv clese to that. Lk
there was a wall there at the time and he was by that.

-

So we can see in that photeograph then there is noe longer but
there was at the time, a wall? - A, Yes, sir,

When you saw him, what was he doing? - A, My first view of
him prior to being joined by the rest of the Police Officers,
I saw him when I was on my own. I clearly saw him throw
missiles at us -~ two missiles -~ one after the other,

Did you see what those missiles were? - A, As far as I can
remember they went through the air very quickly. They were
small and dark, I think they were small bricks or stones
or something,

You said you had seen that'before'you were joined by wyour
Police colleagues? - A, Yes, sir.

The man whose name you cannct at the moment remember, was he
with you at that time or not? - A. No, he was not, I was on
my OWn.

Well now, the t ime came when this Policeman was on your left? -
A, That is correct, sir.

Where was Mr. O'Brien at this stage? -~ A, He basically
maintained the same position at the front of the group, to
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the right of the road, but he was moving around there,

Now, you say at the front of the group. Perhaps you could
explain that a little., First of all, on the earlier occasion
when you saw him and he threw the two objects, wherewas he

in relation to any other people? - A, At that time his
position did not change much, apart from just moving about

in the same area, '

Where were the closest people to him and what were they doing? -

A, The nearest people to him were on his right. The group at
the front of all these men were splintered., Behind them it
was thick, The ones at the front were throwing missiles.
Some were coming over from the back as well., We were still

under dnstructiocns at that stage not teo arrest anvybody.

by this South Yorkshire Officer -~ were there anyv people Teitween

At this stage -~ this is the earlier point before ycu are Jjoined

vou and where Mr, O!'Brien was doing what you have described? -

A, Not directly inbetween us, no.

So as best you can you have told us that the front of the
pickets were splintered and the rest were in a mass behind? -
A, Yes, they were splintered but they seemed to come at an
angle from where O'Brien was onto the other side of the road
to where the factory was., I think there was a slight angle
across the road,

JUDGE COLES: The angle coming towards you or going
away? - A, Coming towards me, sir,

MR, WALSH: So on that basis, jis % on the left hand =
of the road as yeou look at ii would be further down towards
theose on the right hand side? -~ A, Yes; sir,

We have now reached the stage where vou have Teen Jjoined by
this South Yorkshire Policeman? ~ A, Yes, sir,

And could yvou still see this man whom you later found was
Mr, O'Brien? ~ A, Yes, sir.

What was he doing now? - A, At that time he was Jjust standing
there but he was still clearly in my view.

And then what? - A. I turned, Ve were still stationary.
Y@ had no instructions to move, I turmned to the 0fficer and
I said 'R

I will stop you there, I am not sure you will be permitted
to say what you said but did you say something to him ...

MR, GRIFFITHS: I have no objection.
MR. WALSH: Very well:

You are permiited? - A, I said to him, "Watchi the man in the
denim suitih,

And to whom were you referring? -~ A, I was referying to Mr,
O'Briena

B
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Well now, having said that to this other Officer, did you
continue to watch the man in the denim suit? - A, Yes, my
sights were on him as far as I could maintain it because
there were still missiles coming across,

And what, if anything, did Mr, O'Brien do? - A, While I was
watching him he threw ancther stone at our group,

Where did he get it from? - A, From the ground., He bent’
down, picked it up and threw it at us.

Were yvou able to see what size of object it was, or shape? -
A, As far as I could remember, it was Jjust a stone of some
description, It was small.

And when vou say "at us ecee."? - A, At the Police,
Did he do anything else? - A, Right away more-or-less he

plcked up another one, which was bigger than the first one,
and that one he threw at. us again., "This one came towards me.

Can you give us any indication of the size of this ome? -

A, It was a bigger one. I reckon it was smaller thar half =a
housebrick but a housebrick-type brick, Half a housebrick
with bits chopped off.

So it was a house brick but not a whole one? - A, That is
correct,

JUDGE COLES: You said slightly smaller than half? -

Ae Yas, s8it,.

MR, WALSH: Cf what was the previcus object made? -
A, T cannot honestly remember.

Now, what happened to this one that came towards wvou? -~
A, This one came right at me so, with my riot shield, T
parried it.

Where did it go? - A. It went down onto the road in front of
me to my left,

And so what did you do? - A, My sights were set on him, He
was the man, if I got the chance to arrest, I was going to
arrest,

And why were you going to arrest him? - A, I had séen him
throw four objects, one of which hit my riot shield, and I
was determined he was going to be arrested,

Kow, when you parried and deflected this stone, were you still
in approximately the same position as you told us? - A. Yes,
sir.

Did you remain in that position? - A, More-or-~less right away,
within seconds, we were told to charge and we were also told
to take prisoners, The first two were no prisoners, This

cne was to take prisoners. I have remembered the Officer's
name Now = Anderson.
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This is the South Yorkshire Officer? -~ A, It is, sir, vyes.
So this time that is the order? - A, Yes, sir,
So what did vyou do? - A. I made a beeline for O'Brien.

Could vou see what Anderson did? - A, I could not say now.

When we got the order T said to Anderson, I shouted to him,
tGet him", That was on the order to charge. I said, "Get

him" and I went for him,

When you charged forward, what did O'Brien do? - A, As far as
T know he ran with us but I Just eese

What do vou mean? - A. AT that point in time I did notl look
behind me s o e s

I said 0tBrien, not Anderson? - A, When we started to charge
he turned around and ran,

Did you pursue him? - A, Yes, sir.

Where did he go? - A, He went into the front garden of a house
on the right side of the road.

The photographs go on -~ 7, 8, 9, and looking backwards, 10 and
11, Do any of those photographs assist you? - A, As far as

T can remember it was the front garden of the second house .49
T thinlk they were semi-detached houses ...

There are two other ways of doing it. There is an aerial
photograpn wihich shows the hcouses spaced cut a little betler.
There is, in fact, a plan which shows tThe houses drawn at

the side of the road? ~ A. Yes, I think this will suffice,

The aerial photograph? - A, It was the second block of houses,
the front garden of the house omn the right hand side as you
look down on top of it from the air,

Could you mark which front garden it is or which house it is?
MR. WALSH;: To help wyour Honour and the Jury, it is

the one where there is a white car immediately passing by

in front on the photograph, so it is the second block on

the right hand side.

He went into the garden of that house? - A. Yes,

The front garden? - A, Yes.

And you? -~ A, I was behind him.

And then did you gain on him? - A. Yes, he was delayed ....
what he was going to do was follow the males in front of him
who were going down the side of the hecuse. That is what T
presuned he was going to do.

So there were males ahead of him going down by the side of
the house? -~ A, Yes.
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So you were able to catch up? -~ A, Yes,
And did you get him? ~ A, T did, sir, ves,

And where was he - stood in the frent garden (...?7 - A, He
was in the front garden.

And when you reached him, which way was he facing? - A, He was
facing away from me,

What happened when you reached him? « A, I got over the front
wall, There was a small wall there or a gate -« I am not

sure about that but I think it was a wall - and as I climbed
over the wall he was just about on the corner of the housse

in the front garden by the drive, I think,; abouft to go round
the side,

So as you climbed over the wall c¢or gate, he was by the front
corner of the house about to go round the side, so you thought?
A, So I thought,

And, either by measurement, if you like, or by pointing to any
object in this room, aboutft how far away frem you was he? -~

A, He was +.++ when he was just by the front of the house, I
axm right behind him at that point. His movement round the
side of tThe house was delayved because there were others in
frent of him, That enabled me to gain ground on him,

S50 where was he when you finally caught up with him? - A,
Actually still at the front of the house aa that corner.

¥hat happened when vou reached him? -~ A, I dived at him, hit
Irim on the back with my riot shield, and he fell to the flcor.

JUDGE COLES: He fell to the floor? « A, Both of us
fell to the floor, sir, with me on top of him.

MR, WALSH: What happened on the floor? - A, When he
was on the floor he turned over and I think it was with his
left hand ... he is laying on the floor, he turned over
with his left hand like that and I am still on top of him,
obviously, trying to get me off os0o

JUDGE COLES: His left hand like what? - A, He was
laying on the flocor. I am on top of him, He is moving.
He turns with his left hand ....

As if to knock vou off? - A, Yes.

MR, WALSH: Because he is on his front and you are
lying on his back? - A. Yes,

JUDGE COLES: He was trying to push you off him? -
A. Yes, sir, ‘

MR, WALSH: Yes? - A, So I hit him again with my riot
shield., It was at that point when I was joined by Constable
Anderson,
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What happened when Anderson Jjoined you? -~ A, I rolled off
him, I was totally off balance, When I got up I think he
was getting himself up but Constable Anderson was over him.,.

And did Mr., O'Brien get to his feet? ~ A, Well, T got fto my
feet first and pulled O!'Brien up.

And Mr. Anderson was over him as well? ~ A, Yes,

Did Mr, Anderson do anything to pull him up? - A, I do not

‘know if he did anything to pull him up. T had hold of him

and pulled him up and when he was in a standing position
Constable Anderson took hold of his left side,

And when he was on his feet, did you take = lock at him? -
A. I looked at him certainly, vyes.

Did you motice anything about him? ~ A. He had a2 cut on his
right eve.

Whereabouts? - A, Just there,

You are pointing above the eyebrow on the right hand side of
the lower forehead? - A. Yes, sir.

And how had that been occasioned, can you fTell us? - A, 1 can
only presume it was when I jumped on top of him., I do not
think I could have done it with my riot shield because his
face was down, Maybe I knocked his face into the floow,

Once he is on his feet and you two are as well, what happenszd
next? = A, We pulled him back out of the garden., All <the
time there are still missiles coming across atv us, There

was a very few moments when nothing at all was thrown,

Now, wyou took him out of the garden, in which direction,
towards the back of the house or the front of the house? -
A. The front of the house, The same way as we had come in.

50 you would be back on the pavement or the rocad? -~ A, That
is right, sir,

And from what you have told us, it looks as though the garden
you are at is just about at the brow of the hill? -~ A, That
would be correct, vyes,

Now, wiien you are out with him, did you stay there or go
somewhere else? - A, No, we rushed him through away from
where we were further down the road out of the range of the
missiles,

JUDGE COLES: Down the hill? - A, Yes, it was down the
hill, sir.

MR, WALSH: Bow far did you take him or to what did you
take him? - A, We took him towards the thick blue line of
Police Officers who had long shields at the front of them.

Where were they positioned? - A. Across the road, up the hill,
about a few yards from the bridge.
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Did you take him through the Police lines? -~ A. The Police
lines opened up for us to take him through,

Did you say anything to him as you were taking him on this
journey? -~ A, Yes, sir, I told him what I was arresting him
for.

Can you remember what you said? - A, I said, "You are being
arrested for threatening behaviour", It was loud and it was
clear,

Did you say anything more to him? - A, Yes, I then fully
cautioned him,

Saying what? - A, I said, "You are not obliged tTo say anything
unless you wish to do so but whatever vou say will be taken
down in writing and given in evidence". That was also said
loud, practically shouting at him,

Now, can you tell us whereabouts you were when you said you
told him that he had been arrested for threatening behaviour
and you cautiomr d him? - A, That was before we reached the
first Police line,

When you said that to him, did he say anything in reply? =
A, He said, "I do not know what vyou are tallking abocut",

So you go through the Police lines. Then what? - A, The first
Police line opened up which was about ten Officers deep,

down the hill, over the bridge; where there was another mass
of Police Officers, about 20 or 30 deep. They were spread

cut across the road,

¥ell now,; what did you do? Did you go through them? -

A, They parted., We went through them, An Officer came up
to us, a senior Officer, saw a cut on his head which was
bleeding and told us to take him to the ambulance,

And did you do that? - A, We did, sir, ves,

Where did you find an ambulance? ~ A, There was one waiting
at the bottom of the hill just a few vards further up from
the entrance to the coking plant.

And did both you and Anderson go to the ambulance with him? -
A, Yes,sir,

And into the ambulance? - A, Yes.
Did you go in the ambulance? - A, Yes, sir,
bid Anderson go in the ambulance? - A, Yes, sir.

And where did you go with him? - A, We went to Rotherham
Hospital.

That is all three of you? -~ A, No, there was somebody else
in the back of the ambulance as well,
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Qs Who else? - A, Arthur Scargill was in the rear of the
ambulance.

Qe S0 at the moment we have got you, vour colleague, Mr,
Anderson, the Defendant and Mr, Scargill. Anyone else? =
A, There was an ambulance man sitting on Scargill's right.
Qs Anyone else? -~ A, No, sir.

Qe And obwviously a driver? - A, Yes, sir,

Q. Was there anybody else at the front with the driver? - A, 1
do not remember,

Qe You go to Rotherham General Hospital? - A, Yes, sir,

Q. Were vou with Mr. O'Brien when he received any treatment
there? - A, No, sir.

Qe You waited for him, did you? - A, Yes, sir.

Q. Of course, he was under arrest from the moment that you had
taken hold of him? - A. Yes.

Qs S0 if somebody requires medical treatment, do you have to go
to hospital with him when he is under arrest? -~ A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did a time come when his btreatment was completed? - A, Yes, sir,.

Q. And was he released by the hospital authorities inte yourw
custody? - A, That is correct,

Q. And where did you take him? -~ A, To Rotherham Police Station,

Q. And just so that we are clear in this: this 1s not the
Police Command Post or HQ at Orgreave; this is the actual
Police Station in Rotherham town centre? - A, Yes,sir.

Q. And what happened when vou got there? - A, We took him
upstairs to the charge office and I related the circumstances
of his arrest to, as I remember, the Inspector behind the
de Sko

Qe And then what? - A, I told the Inspector that I had arrested
him LI I

Qe Once you had related the circumstances %o the Inspector,
then what? - A, He was placed in a cell.

Q. And did you have any more to do with him at that time? -
A., Yes, sir.

Qe You did? -~ A, I formally cautioned him and charged him,

Qe With what? - A, Unlawful assembly.

Qe And while this was going on, that is to say, the return
from hospital to Rotherham Police Station and the handing
him over to the Inspector, where is Constable Anderson? -

A, He was with me,
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JUDGE COLES: Was he with you for the caution and
charge? -~ A, T do not remember, sir,

MR. WALGSH: Having cautioned and charged him; did that
complete your dealings with Mr, O'Brien? -~ A, Yes, sir.

And what did you deo then? - A, Returned to Orgreave to the
Peolice Command room and made a statement,

Are vou able to tell us what time of day it was when you got
back to Orgreave and made your statement? -~ A. I think it was
about 3 o'clock, half-past«three, I am not certain of the
time, I was not wearing a watch,.

Could you tell us whereabouts you went to at the Command Post
at Orgreave? - A. It was a fairly bare room apart from tables
and chaixrs,

Were you alone or with anybody? - A, There were cther 0Officers
there including Constable Anderson.

¥hat were the other Officers doing? - A. They were writing
statements,

As vou arrived there or after you arrived? - A, As we went
into the room other Officers were sitting down writing
statements.

When vyou two went in there, was it just the two of you
together or did you go in with anybody else? -~ A, Just the
two of us together,

Did vou write vyour statements on a form? - A, On a proper
statement form, sir.

How did you get hold of those? - A, A CID Officer gave us
statement forms,

And what did you do? - A. Commenced writing a statement,

Did anything happen so far as you and Mr. Anderson were

concerned before you started writing your statements? -

A, Well, the CID Officer who gave us the statement forms
gave us an idea of what the introduction would be to the
statement,

What do you mean by that? - A, Basically that we were
deployed at Orgreave as part of a PSU contingent.

Did he do anything more than that? - A, No.

And when you wrote your statement, whose words were they
that went down in your statement? - A. Purely mine.,

And when you were writing your statement, what was
Anderson doing? ~ A, He was writing his statement. We were
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both independent of one another up until the point where
he joined me and, from that point on, we converged when we
made made our statements,

You spoke to each other as you were making your statements? -
A. Yes, sir,

And when you concluded making your statements, what did-you
do with the statement you had written? - A, Gave them to the
CID Officer who gave us the blank forms - the same CID Officer.

And then did you have any more action to do that day or did
you depart? -~ A, No, sir, it was all quiet, We departed back
to Humberside.,

JUDGE COLES: Is that where vou were billeted? - A, Based
at Kirton in Lindsey, sir.

MR. WALSH: North Lincolnshire is now part of Humberside,
your Honour, -

JUDGE COLES:.  Very well.
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